
Online Distance Education Programs

Michigan State University

FaIl 2012

Program Name - Degrees, Minors and Credential Total
Prrarnst

Total Program
Specialization (Approved at the University-Level and Earned Credit Hour Cost Requisite
Listed on the Michigan State University Transcript) Hours

Out-of-State Out-of-State
Biomedical Laboratory Operations1 MS. 31 $ 765.50

- $ 23730.50
Biomedical Laboratory Science MA. 30 765.50 - 22965.00
Clinical Laboratory Science MS. 30 $ 765.50 - $ 22965.00
Criminal Justice MS. 30 $ 638.00 - 19140.00
Education MA. 30 $ 683.00 - 20490.00
Educational Technology MA. 30 S 683.00 20,490.00
Foreign Language Teaching MA. 30 S 695.00 $ 20,850.00
Health Professions Education MA. 30 $ 683.00 $ 20,490.00
Higher, Adult & Lifelong Education M.A. 30 $ 683.00 $ 20,490.00
Law Enforcement Intelligence &Analysis MS. 30 5 638.00 $ 19,140.00

Graduate
Literacy & Language Instruction Specialization 21 $ 1,173.25 $ 24,638.25

48/32 -

See $26,376.00 or Current licensure in resident state or
Nursing - (RN to BSN Track Only) BSN Attachment $ 549.50 $17,584.00 country

See Current licensure in resident state or
Nursing1 MS. Attachment $ 662.50 See Attachment country

5 22,525.00 - Current licensure in resident state or
Clinical Nurse Specialist Concentration1 MSN 34 to 38 $ 662.50 $ 25,175.00 country
Packaging M.S. 30 $ 724.50 $ 21,735.00
Public Health — Master of Public Health1 MPH 42 $ 660.00 $ 27,720.00
Pharmacology & Toxicology M.S. 31 $ 732.00 $ 22,692.00

30-36 See $ 20,490.00 -

Special Education MA. Attachment $ 683.00 $ 24,588.00
Youth Development MA. 36 $ 485.00 $ 17,460.00

Certificate Programs
(Approved at the University-Level and Listed on the Michigan State University Transcript)

Graduate Current licensure in resident state or
Clinical Nurse Specialist Certificate 25 $ 662.50 $ 16,562.50 country

Graduate
Clinical Research Trials Management Certificate 12 $ 660.00 $ 7,920.00

Graduate
Counterfeit Pharmaceuticals Certificate 12 $ 660.00 $ 7,920.00

Graduate
Educational Technology Certificate 9 $ 765.50 $ 6,889.50

Graduate
International Public Health Certificate 15 $ 660.00 $ 9,900.00

Graduate
Public Health Certificate 18 $ 660.00 $ 1,880.00

Graduate
Public Health Administration Certificate 15 $ 660.00 $ 9,900.00

Graduate
Public Health Informatics Certificate 15 $ 660.00 $ 9,900.00

Graduate
Safety Pharmacology Certificate 11 $ 765.50 $ 8,420.50

Graduate
Serious Game Design & Research Certificate 9 $ 765.50 $ 6889.50

Graduate
Teaching & Learning in Postsecondary Education Certificate 9 $ 765.50 $ 6,889.50

Graduate
Youth Development Specialist Certificate 13 $ 485.00 $ 6,305.00

Graduate
Youth Program Management & Evaluation Certificate 16 $ 485.00 $ 7,760.00

‘Internship, practicum or clinical rotation could potentially be completed off-campus or outside the state of Michigan with prior approval of advisor and/or academic unit.
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w
[REFUND POLICY

Back to top

If a student withdraws from the university or drops a course, the refund policy will be:

1. For changes made through the first 1/4 of the term of instruction (measured in weekdays, not class days),
100 percent of the semester course fees and tuition for the net credits dropped will be refunded.

2. For changes made after the first 1/4 of the term of instruction and through the end of the session, no refund
will be made for any credits dropped. Any courses approved for late add will be billed in the next monthly
bill.

When dropping a course, the date the notification from the department is received in the Office of the Registrar will
determine the amount of refund applicable.

Appeals concerning the refund policy should be referred to the Office of the Registrar.

Net refunds due to a drop of credits or withdrawal from the university are processed daily and posted to students
accounts. Amounts due students will be applied against outstanding balances owed the University or returned to
students. Questions regarding account balances should be referred to the Student Accounts Office, 140
Administration Building.

http ://www.reg.msu.edu/academicprograms/TextAll.asp?Section=112 11/16/2012
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Page 1 of 1

Search Semester Spring 2013
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Starting On or Before
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Location

Availability
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* Instructor
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Starting On or After

ANY

11:50PM ‘•

MM/DD/YYYY MM/DD/Ym’

Sunday L] Monday Li Tuesday Li Wednesday i Thursday Li Friday ji Saturday
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0 All Open Honors View all results on one page -

U
Number

of Credits

Search for Courses

MICHIGAN STATE Schedule of CoursesU N I V E R S I T Y

I
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Special Searches ieii
After Off Study Building Honors Online &
5 PM Campus Abroad Search Hybrid

Special
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4
Kellogg
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MSU Home I Office of the Registrar I Academic Calendar I Course Catalog I Final Exam Policy and Schedule
Building List I StuINFO I Student Opinion of Courses and Teaching

© 2012 Office of the Registrar, Michigan State University Board of Trustees
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Tuition and Fees for Fall and Spring Semester for Non-Resident Students

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY

Non-Resident Tuition, Fee, Tax And Housing Rates To Be Effective
Fall Semester 2012 and Spring Semester 2013

Page 1 of3

Students are assessed tuition each semester on the basis of their level, class, residency status, and number of credits carried. Tuition is
assessed on a per credit-hour basis except for graduate-professional students who are assessed on a semester basis and selected masters
program students who are assessed on a semester, annual, or program basis.

Lifelong Education students are not assessed Student Taxes. Lifelong Education students in certain online courses may be assessed
additional tuition fees of up to $150 per credit hour which are not reflected below.

NOTE: Certain courses may be assessed additional section fees, such as certain kinesiology courses, that are not reflected in the Tuition,
Fees, and Student Voted Taxes tables below. Further information regarding additional section fees can be found in the Schedule of Courses
in the course description content.

Masters
Doctoral
Graduate Certification
Graduate Lifelong Education
MA. & MS. in the College of Education
Education Specialists & Doctoral Programs
MS. in Accounting
On-line Clinical Laboratory Sciences/Biomedical
Laboratory Operations Masters
On-line Criminal Justice Masters (includes Law
Enforcement Intelligence and Judicial Administration
programs)
On-line Education Masters
On-line Educational Psychology and Educational
Technology Hybrid PhD
On-line Food Safety Masters (additional program fees
apply to VM 810)
On-line Integrative Pharmacology Masters
On-line Packaging Masters
On-line Pharmacology & Toxicology Masters
On-line Public Health Masters
On-line Nursing M.S.N./CNS-Education

$1,173.25
1,173.25

765.50
765.50

1206.25
1,206.25
1,394.25

765.50

638.00

683.00

938.00

608.50

732.00
724.50
732.00
660.00
662.50

Undergraduate Students

TUITION (per credit-hour basIs) I RESIDENT
Lower Division $1086.00
Upper Division 1,120.?5
Accelerated Nursing B.S.N. 626.50
On-line Nursing RN. to B.S.N. 549.50
Undergraduate Lifelong Education 765.50

SPECIAL PROGRAMMATIC FEES-
Junior and Senior Level (per semester) AMOUNT

Science and Teqhnlogy Intensive Majors - Full-Time $100.00
Science and Technology Intensive Majors - Part-

50 00Time*

Health Sciences Majors -Full-Time 100.00
Health Sciences Majors - PartTime* 50.00

Broad College of Business - Full-Time 200.00
Broad College of Business - PartTime* 100.00

Engineering Program - Full-Time 545.00
Engineering Program - PartTime* 334.00

*Part time is 4 credits and below

STUDENT VOTED TAXES (per semester) AMOUNT
ASMSU Tax - au undergraduate students $18.00
FM Radio Tax - all degree students 3.00
State News Tax - all degree students with 6 or more

5 00credit hours
James Madison College Student Senate Tax - all

1 00students in James Madison College

Graduate Students

TUITION
(per credit-hour basis)

RESIDENT

,‘fir ,,.,‘r, I(+r,,4,.,,+A V 1 1 /L/’,l ‘l



Certification
On-line Youth Development through Great Plains
IDEA Masters Degree
On-line Youth Development through Great Plains
IDEA Masters Certificate

SPECIAL BLOCK PROGRAM FEES - (per
semesteñ

Residence Halls Undergraduate Housing
- Double Room - Platinum (md. $300 Spartan

Cash)
Residence Halls Undergraduate Housing

- Double Room - Gold (md. $150 Spartan Cash)
Residence Halls Undergraduate Housing

- Double Room - Silver
Owen Graduate Center - Permanent Single -

Traditional meal plan*

Owen Graduate Center - Designated Single -

Traditional meal plan*

Owen Graduate Center - Permanent Single -

Unlimited meal plan*

Owen Graduate Center - Designated Single -

Unlimited meal plan*

University Apts - Family Monthly Rates
Renovated One Bedroom Apartment

University Apts - Family Monthly Rates
Renovated Two Bedroom Apartment

University Apts - Family Monthly Rates
Standard One Bedroom Apartment

University Apts - Family Monthly Rates
Standard Two Bedroom Apartment

University Village
Per Resident

Tuition and Fees for Fall and Spring Semester for Non-Resident Students Page 2 of 3

485.00

485.00

NON
RESIDENT

$ 13761
Teacher Certification Internship Year (based on 12
credits)
Broad MBA 20,738
Human & Osteopathic Medicine 26,822
Human & Osteopathic Medicine Extended Medical

17 890Curriculum
Human & Osteopathic Medicine - Medical Scientist

18 094Training Program
Veterinary Medicine 26,084
Veterinary Medicine Clinical Year - Fall & Spring 23,?24
Veterinary Medicine Clinical Year - Summer 15,496
Veterinary Medicine - Medical Scientist Training

16 481Program

SPECIAL PROGRAM FEES - (applies to entire NON-
program) RESIDENT

Weekend MBA Program $61,500
MS in Marketing Research 33,600
MS in Supply Chain Management (on-line & on

48 000campus)
M.S.N. Nursing Anesthesia (CRNA) Program 73,025

PECIAL PROGRAMMATIC FEES - (per semester) I AMOUNT
Engineering Program — students majoring in

$545 00Engineering - Full-Time
Engineering Program — students majoring in

334 00Engineering- PartTime*

*Part time is 4 credits and below

STUDENT VOTED TAXES (per semester) I AMOUNT
COGS Tax- all graduate students $9.25
COMS Tax - all graduate professional medical

1 50students
FM Radio Tax - all degree students 3.00
State News Tax - all degree students with 6 or more

5 00credit hours

University Housing Rates - Other University Housine rates.

UNIVERSITY
HOUSING RATES I SEMESTER PER MONTH

$4,538

4,388

4,238

$ 3,750

4,225

4,963

5,438

$716

856

650

774

690

,vw,, 1Innv 1 1 ‘



Tuition and Fees for Fall and Spring Semester for Non-Resident Students Page 3 of 3

*lncludes a $300 credit towards Owen food purchases, plus 75 residence hail meal access privileges.

In addition, students living in undergraduate housing or University Village will be charged a RHA tax of $25.00 per semester.
Students living in Owen Graduate Center will be assessed an OGA tax of $5.00 per semester. Students living in University
Apartments will be charged a UA COR tax of $3.00 per semester.

Financial Aid Awards
Those students who have applied and who are eligible for financial assistance should be aware that increases in educational
costs have been provided for in their financial aid awards. For further information, students should contact the Office of
Financial Aid, by phone, email, in person (Student Services Building, 556 E. Circle Dr Rm 252), or through their web site at
wwwfinaid.msu.edu.

Important Note
The University reserves the right to make changes in the types, structures, and rates for fees, deposits, tuition, and housing.
Every effort will be made to give as much advance notice as possible.

J I I k I. I’ I a a

Contact Us I Accessibility

© 2010 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. tast Lansing MI 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.

Web Standards: Xl-ITML 1.0 Transitional I CSS I WCAG AAA

httn/Iwwwctlrmsii e1ii/COStii1ei,tA rrciirntc/Tiiftinn c1\Tri,R pcirlps,t ccnv 11 /f/’)fl 1 )



Tuition, Fees and Housing Calculator Page 1 of 1

Fall 2012
Tuition, Fees, and Housing Calculator

This calculator is meant to help you estimate your tuition, fees and housing costs FOR ONE SEMESTER.

NOTE: If you will be enrolled as a medical student, a graduate assistant, Broad graduate student, Weekend MBA (PIM) student, Michigan
State University College of Law student, or in any Virtual University on-line courses or programs, other rates will apply. For additional rates
as well as deferred payment options click on the Student Accounts tab located on the left of this page.

1. Your Residency for tuition: in-state

2. Your Level: Select your level

3. Beginning of Enrol!ment in
Enter Yeara degree program (4 digit year):

4. Beginning Semester of enrollment: Fall

5. Are you an International Student? No v

6. Are you in the James Madison College? No

7. How many credits? (one semester): Enter Credits

8. Select your MSLJ housingimeal plan type (optional):
none selected - v

Submit Request Reset Form

L L i’ .1 0

Contact Us I Accessibility

© 2010 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing MI 48824
MSU is as affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.

Web Standards: Xl-ITML 1.0 Transitional I CSS I WCAG AAA

htto ://ctlr.msu.edu/COStudentAccounts/TuitionCalculatorFal 1 .asnx 11 IeIY fl 1
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Operational Policies

IMPORTANT INFORMATION - PLEASE READ

Fees/Charges/Insurance

1 Late Enrollment Fees
2. Late Registration Fee

3. Late Payment Charges
4. Bad Check Charges

5. International Student Accident and Health Insurance
6. Administrative Fee for Sponsored International Students

Refund Policies

1. Course Fees and Out-of-State Tuition

Financial Aid

1. Stafford Loans
2. MEDLOANS/Alternative Loans
3. Perkins/HPL
4. National Merit Scholarship Checks
5. Other Anticipated Aid
6. Refunds of Excess Financial Aid

Financial Aid Refund Policy

1 Dropping Credits

2. Withdrawal from the University

Return of Funds Policy for Title IV Aid Recipients Who Withdraw

Fees/Charges/Insurance

1. Late Enrollment Fees (applies to students in degree granting programs only)

Fall & Spring Semesters:

• Continuing students who do not enroll prior to the initial enrollment deadline will be charged a $50 late enrollment fee.
• All students who initially enroll after the start of classes will be charged a $100 late enrollment fee until the middle of the semester.
• All students initially enrolling after the middle of the semester will be charged a $200 late enrollment fee until the end of the

semester.

Summer Semesters:

• Continuing students who initially enroll on the first day of classes through the midterm will be charged a $50 late enrollment fee.
• All students who initially enroll after the midterm of the term of instruction of their course will be charged a $100 late enrollment fee.

All Semesters:

• All students initially enrolling after the last class day of the term of instruction will be charged a $300 late enrollment fee.
• All students who have a course added to their academic record after the last class day of the term of instruction will be charged a

$200 fee for each course added.

2. Late Registration Fee

Students who fail to return their payments by the bill due date may be subject to a late registration fee of up to $50. Students with a
$0.00 Minimum Amount Due must confirm their attendance by the bill due date. Failure to Confirm Attendance by the due date may
result in a $25 late registration fee.

3. Late Payment Charges

A $25 late payment charge will be assessed on any past due student account. This includes, but is not limited to, past due payment
plans (both first and final installments), rent payments, tuition adjustments, and adjustments to financial aid awards.

ny 11 icifli ?
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4. Bad Check Charges (Includes rejected ACH payments)

A $25 bad check/ACH fee and a $50 late registration fee will be assessed to a student whose registration check/ACH does not clear
the bank when presented. Students failing to redeem their registration checks/ACH by the date stated on the notification letter will have
their registration canceled.

There is a $25 fee assessed for each non-registration check/ACH which does not clear the bank when presented.

In addition to the assessed bad check/ACH fee, the University reserves the right to take one or more of the following actions:

• Place an enrollment and registration hold.
• Place the individual on the University Bad CheckJACH List which precludes the individual from cashing checks at the University and

may be a cause for denying future short term loans.
• Transfer the debt to a collection agency.
• File a complaint with the police for possible prosecution.
• Refer the student to the Judicial Affairs Office for disciplinary action.
• Bring civil action against the individual for the amount of a returned check/ACH not redeemed within 30 days of the date of the

notification letter and $250 in costs. In addition, the court could rule that you must also pay the greater of $100 or two times the
amount of the returned checklACH. If you pay the total amount due within 30 days, no civil action will be taken against you.

5. International Student Accident and Health Insurance

All registered international students including Lifelong Education students (who are not Graduate Assistants) and their accompanying
family members are required to have health and accident insurance. They are automatically charged the MSU Student Health
Insurance Plan insurance premium on Fall and/or Spring semester tuition billings. If an international student has comparable coverage
in a different health plan, a waiver can be requested by contacting the MSU Benefits Office. For information email:
studentinsurance@HRmsu.edu or call 800-353-4434 ext. 536. Web sites which are available are:
http://www.hrmsu.edu/HRsite/benefits/students/HealthCov/ or http://wwwchickering.com Intemational students who are sponsored by
an agency or government should contact the Office for International Students and Scholars (OISS), 517-353-1720, or email to:
oiss@msu.edu to request a waiver. Sponsored students who have waived the MSU plan, but need to enroll their spouse and/or eligible
dependents may obtain an enrollment form from OISS.

6. Administrative Fee for Sponsored International Students

Organizations sponsoring international students will be charged an annual administrative fee for services and support rendered. The
fee of $700 is assessed in two installments of $350 each for the Fall and Spring semesters for students who register at those times.

Refund Policies

1. Course Fees and Out-of-State Tuition

If a student withdraws from the University or drops a course, the refund policy is:

• For changes made through 1/4th of the term of the class (measured in weekdays - not class days), one hundred percent (100%) of
the semester course fees and tuition for the net credits dropped will be refunded.

• For changes made after the 1/4th of the term and through the end of the session, no refund will be made for any credits dropped,
nor may courses be exchanged, even when counted by GA tuition waiver. Appeals concerning the refund policy should be referred
to the Registrar’s Office.

Net refunds due to a drop of credits or withdrawal from the University are processed daily and posted to the student’s account. Amounts
due students will be applied against outstanding balances owed the University or refunded to students. Questions regarding account
balances should be referred to the Student Accounts Office, Hannah Administration Building, 426 Auditorium Road Rm 140.

• Program Fees are refunded in the same percentage as course fees when withdrawing from the University or dropping from above 4
credits to 4 credits or less.

• Student Government Taxes, FM Radio Tax, and The State News assessment are refundable upon presentation of the appropriate
receipt at the respective organization’s office by the publicized date.

Except for the last two weeks of the semester, residents granted a contract release will be refunded unused housing and food service
payments for the balance of the academic semester. Details are found in the Rules for Living in the Residence Halls (pdf).

Financial Aid

All financial aid (except College Work Study) which has been authorized at the time the Registration Billing Statement is produced, will
appear on the bill. There are two types of financial aid - actual and anticipated.

Actual financial aid is aid which you are eligible to receive, as of the date of the registration bill. This aid will be listed in the “Financial Aid”
transaction section of the bill. It has been applied to the fees you owe, reducing the amount you owe.

htto ://www.ctlr.msu.edulCOStudentAccoimts/crnerntionPol i ciec cnx 11 It fl 17
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Anticipated financial aid will be listed separately on the bill, in the ‘Anticipated Financial Aid” section. Anticipated aid is not an actual payment
on your account; it does not reduce the amount you owe. Anticipated aid is only used to reduce the ‘Minimum Amount Due’ on the
Registration Billing Statement.

1. Stafford Loans

Anticipated aid becomes actual aid 1) when you have accepted all aid as required and completed on-line or paper promissory notes as
needed for any student or parent loans and 2) when the legal disbursement date for federal loans has arrived.

You may view your financial aid awards in STUINFO. Select eFinaid from the STUINFO menu. You must have your MSUNet ID and
password to access this page.

The eFinaid will not only tell you your financial aid, but also will lead you through a series of individual messages designed to tell you
what actions you need to take, especially regarding the processing of your student loans.

2. MEDLOANSIAlternative Loans

If you have a loan that is disbursed by check, go to Student Services, 556 E. Circle Dr Rm 252, to endorse your checks.

3. Perkins/HPL

The Perkins Master Promissory Note website is accessible only to those students who have completed a Free Application for Federal
Student Aid (FAFSA) and have been awarded a Perkins student loan.

If you have not completed a FAFSA, and wish to apply for financial aid, please visit the following website to complete this step:
http://www.fafsa.edgov

If you wish to sign your Perkins loan note electronically you must first agree to perform financial aid business on-line by visiting the
STUINFO website at http://stuinfo.msu.edu/ and follow the steps outlined in eConsent for Financial Aid (located under the FINANCIAL
section). Financial aid eConsent will allow you to access your financial aid data in MSU web applications, to accept or decline loans,
and to perform other financial aid business on-line.

Signing a Perkins Master Promissory Note (MPN) will enable you to receive Perkins loans for multiple award years without signing any
additional promissory notes. Prior to the MPN, the Perkins program required students to sign a new full-year loan note each academic
year.

If you do not want to electronically sign your Master Promissory Note you can request a paper Master Promissory Note, and related
documents, be mailed to you. If you have not agreed to transact financial aid business on-line the only option available to you on this
website will be the “I do not wish to sign my Perkins Loan Note electronically. Please send a paper note for my signature option at the
bottom of the first page”. Please note that if you choose to sign a paper promissory note:

• Upon receipt of the paper request, you should expect 10-14 days for completion.
• If the documents are not completed properly, they will be returned to you for correction.

After completing the steps necessary to request a paper note you will receive an e-mail confirming receipt of your request.

Health Profession loan notes, if applicable, will be mailed to you. Follow the instructions given regarding the return of notes and
instructions for receiving your funds.

4. National Merit Scholarship Checks

The National Merit Scholarship will appear as anticipated financial aid on your registration bill until MSU receives actual funds from
National Merit at the beginning of the semester.

5. Other Anticipated Aid

Follow the instructions that were included with your financial aid award notice.

Eligibility for each of the different awards is monitored at various points in the semester, ranging from the point of time it is credited to
your account, to the end of the semester. You should refer to your financial aid award notification, or contact the Office of Financial Aid,
for more specific information.

6. Refunds of Excess Financial Aid

If the total of your actual financial aid (no longer anticipated aid) exceeds the amount you owe and you have completed registration, you
are entitled to a refund. Refunds will be directly deposited or mailed to your local address (if provided) during the week before classes
begin, If your aid and registration are finalized after this, refunds are produced nightly and directly deposited or mailed the following
workday through the 3rd day of classes (approximately). After this period, refunds are produced and directly deposited or mailed
weekly.

Financial Aid Refund Policy

http://www.ctlr.msu.edu/COStudentAccounts/operationPolicies.aspx 11/6/2012
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1. Dropping Credits
• Students may be billed for a portion or even all of their financial aid awards if they drop credits or do not carry the minimum number

of credits required for aid eligibility.
• The value of Federal Pell Grant, MSU Student Aid Grant, Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant and Michigan

Competitive Scholarship is determined each semester at the end of the 100 percent refund period (the first quarter of the
semester).

• Students will be billed for aid adjustments caused by changes in enrollment status.

2. Withdrawal from the University
• In addition to billing for the dropping of credits associated with withdrawal, there may be additional billing, particularly if a student

has received federal financial aid funds (including Federal Stafford Loan) which were to have covered the entire semester’s
educational costs. Refer to the next section for more detailed information on Title IV withdrawal refund rules.

• tMthdrawal through the first quarter of the semester will result in 100 percent billing of federal grant aid (Federal Supplemental
Educational Opportunity Grant, Federal Pell Grant) and Michigan Competitive Scholarship and may also result in a partial or
complete billing of loan aid (Federal Perkins Loan and Federal Stafford Loan) and other financial aid.

• The bill calculated as a result of withdrawal will depend on the official date of withdrawal and/or the last date of attendance and the
percentage and amount of institutional refund to be received.

• Wthdrawal for any semester during the regular academic year may result in cancellation of a student’s financial aid award for the
remainder of the academic year. If a student wishes to reapply for funds for spring semester, a written request must be submitted to
the Office of Financial Aid within 30 days of withdrawing from the University.

Return of Funds Policy for Title IV Aid Recipients Who Withdraw

The Higher Education Amendments of 1998, as well as the program integrity regulations in 2010, set forth regulations governing the
treatment of Title IV funds when a student withdraws from an institution.

There are three types of withdrawals that fall under the return to Title IV (R2T4) federal calculation regulations:

1. Official Withdrawals — student contacts the Registrar’s Office or their advisor to initiate an official withdrawal for a semester, or the
student drops all of their courses through WebEnroll.

2. Unofficial Withdrawals - If a student begins to attend class, receives federal Title IV aid, but then ceases to attend class without
providing official notification to the University, the Federal Government considers this to be an “unofficial withdrawal”. For Title IV
purposes, the withdrawal date for students who unofficially withdraw is considered to be the midpoint of the semester unless a
documented last date of attendance can be determined. However, if the University determines that a student did not provide official
notice of the intent to withdraw due to illness, accident, grievous personal loss or other circumstances beyond the student’s control, the
University may use a date that is related to that circumstance. The refund rules for Title IV aid recipients who withdraw are then
followed to determine the unearned portion of Title IV aid that must be returned to the appropriate aid program(s).

3. Modular Withdrawals — If a student is enrolled in a standard, term-based program offered in modules (subterms) and ceases
attendance at any point prior to completing the payment period or period of enrollment, unless the school obtains written confirmation
from the student at the time of the withdrawal that he or she will attend a module that begins later in the same payment period or period
of enrollment, the student is considered a withdrawal for Title IV purposes. If written confirmation of future attendance is received from
the student but the student does not return as scheduled, the student is considered to have withdrawn from the payment period or
period of enrollment and the students withdrawal date and the total number of calendar days in the payment period or period of
enrollment would be the withdrawal date and total number of calendar days that would have applied if the student had not provided
written confirmation of future attendance.

When a student is considered to have withdrawsn, as described above, during an enrollment period in which they have begun attendance
and received federal Title IV financial aid, Michigan State University is required to determine the amount of earned and unearned Title IV aid.
A student is only eligible to retain the percentage of Title IV aid disbursed that is equal to the percentage of the enrollment period that was
completed by the student (calculated daily). The unearned Title IV aid must then be returned to the appropriate federal aid program(s). If
more than 60% of the enrollment period has been completed by the student, no Title IV aid needs to be returned.

According to university policy, when a student withdraws prior to the quarter of the semester and/or receives a 100% tuition refund from the
university, all of that semesters federal Title IV grant aid (SEOG, Pell Grant, Federal Teach Grant, Iraq and Afghanistan Service Grant) will be
billed back to the students account. Most non-federal aid will also be billed back to the students account. All Title IV aid will be included in the
calculations outlined below. Depending on the results of the calculations, some or all of the federal grant aid may be re-disbursed to the
student account.

The following steps will be followed when determining the amount of Title IV aid to be returned upon withdrawal:

1. Determine percentage of enrollment period completed by student. Divide the number of days attended by the number of days in the
enrollment period. If the calculated percentage exceeds 60%, then the student has earned all Title IV aid for the enrollment period.

2. Calculate the amount of earned Title IV aid. Multiply the percentage of the enrollment period completed by the total Title IV aid
disbursed (or could have been disbursed as defined by late disbursement rules).

3. Determine amount of unearned aid to be returned to Title IV aid program accounts. Subtract the amount of earned federal aid from the
total amount of federal aid disbursed. The difference must be returned to the appropriate Title IV aid program(s).

4. Return of Title IV funds by institution and student:

• MSU will return unearned Title IV aid up to an amount that is equal to the total institutional charges for the payment period
multiplied by the percentage of the Title IV aid that was unearned. Generally, a students tuition and fee refund and/or University
Housing refund will satisfy this liability. On occasion, however, particularly when the student remains in University Housing beyond
the withdrawal date, a bill will result.

• The student will be responsible for the balance of unearned Title IV aid. In most cases, this will be the amount of federal aid funds a
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student received in the form of a refund for non-institutional expenses multiplied by the percentage of Title IV aid that was
unearned.

o If the students portion of aid to be returned is a loan, then the student is not immediately required to repay the loan. The terms
of the original loan repayment agreement will apply.

o If the students portion of aid to be retumed is an overpayment of a grant, the student is required to only repay the amount
exceeding 50% of the total grants. MSU will restore the grant funds to the appropriate federal account, with a resulting charge
to the students account. The student will be responsible for repaying MSU for the grant overpayment.

5. Unearned Title IV Funds will be returned to federal programs in the following order:
a. Unsubsidized Federal Stafford Loans
b. Subsidized Federal Stafford Loans
c. Federal Perkins Loans
d. Federal Parent PLUS Loan
e. Federal Pell Grants
f. Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity

g. Federal Teach Grants
h. Iraq and Afghanistan Grant

I. Other Grants

Example of a Title IV return of funds calculation for a Title IV recipient who is considered to have withdrawn:

Institutional Charges $5,000
Title IV Loans $2,000
Title IV Grants $1,000
Total Title IV aid $3,000

Student withdrew on 35th day of a 110 day enrollment period.

Percent Earned 35/110 = 32%

Percent Unearned 100% - 32% = 68%

Amount of Title IV aid unearned $3,000 x 68% = $2,040

MSU is responsible for returning the lesser of unearned Title IV aid ($2,040 from above) or unearned institutional charges ($5,000 x 68% =

$3,400). MSU will return aid as follows:

• Title IV Loans $2,000 (students remaining loan debt = 0)
• Title IV Grants $ 40

The students responsibility is amount of aid unearned ($2,040) less school responsibility ($2,040), which is zero.

The example shown above does not reflect every student refund situation that may exist. More detailed calculation examples are available in
the Student Accounts Office, Hannah Administration Building, 426 Auditorium Road Rm 140, East Lansing, Ml 48824, 517-355-5050, Fax
517-353-9640. Questions regarding the Return of Title IV Funds Policy for students who withdraw should be addressed to the Student
Accounts Office.

The University reserves the right to amend the Title IV Return of Funds Policy at any time in order to comply with Federal regulations.

Contact Us I Accessibility
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Accreditation
Michigan State University is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North
Central Association of Colleges and Schools. Some ndividuai programs, Schools and

colleges are recognized by the accrediting agencies in their respective fields. Information
about the accreditation of individual programs, schools, and colleges is included in program
descriptions in Academic Programs. Updated program listings may be found at the
Registrar’s Office.

The university is a member of the Association of Public and Land-grant Universities,
Association of American Universities, American Council on Education, American Council of
Learned Societies, Association of Graduate Schools, Council of Graduate Schools,
Committee on Institutional Cooperation, and International Association of Universities.

© Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affinnative-action, equal-oppononity employer.
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Central Administration & Academic Organization for Michigan State
University

Board of Trustees

President
Lou Anna K. Simon

Agriculture and Natural Resources
Douglas Buhier, Interim Dean

Arts and Letters
Karl,, A. Wurst, Dean

Eli Broad College of Business and
Graduate School of Management

Stefanie A, Lenway, Dean

Communication Arts and Sciences
Pamela Vvhitten, Dean

Education
Donald E. Heller, Dean

Engineering
Satish Udpa, Dean

Honors College
Cynthia Jackson-Elmoore, Dean

Academic Human Resources
Theodore H. Curry, Associate Provost

and Associate Vice President

Academic Services
Linda 0. Stanford, Associate Provost

Eli and Edythe Broad Art Museum
Michael Rush, Director

Provost and Vice President for Academic AffaIrs
Kim A. Wilcox

Senior Associate Provost
June Youatt

Degree-granting Colleges

Human Medicine
Marsha Rappley, Dean

James Madison College
Sherman W. Gamett, Dean

Lyman Briggs College
Elizabeth H. Simmons, Dean

MSU College of Law
Joan Howarth, Dean

(also reports to a separate
law college board)

College of Music
James Forger, Dean

Natural Science
R. James Kirkpatrick, Dean

Other Core Academic Units

International Studies and Programs
Jeffrey M. Riedinger, Dean

Academic Support Units

Graduate School
Karen L. Klomparens, Associate

Provost and Dean

Libraries,
David A. Gift, Vice Provost

(joint w/ VPFO)

Nursing
Mary H. Mundt, Dean

Osteopathic Medicine
William D. Strampel, Dean

Residential College in the Arts
and Humanities

Stephen L. Esquith, Dean

Social Science
Marietta L. Baba, Dean

Veterinary Medicine
ChristopherM. Brown, Dean

National Superconducting Cyclotron Laboratory
C. Konrad Gelbke, Director

Office of Planning and Budgets
David S. Byelich, Assistant Vice President

and Director
(joint wI VPF0)

Student-Athlete and Support Services
James R. Pignataro, Director
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Office for Inclusion and
Intercultural Initiatives

Paulette Granberry Russell
(joint w/ President)

Faculty and Organizational Development
Deborah G. DeZure, Assistant Provost

MSU Global
Christine Geith, Assistant Provost

and Executive Director

Olin Health Center
Glynda M. Moorer, Director

Undergraduate Education
Douglas Estry, Associate Provost

and Dean of Undergraduate Studies

University Outreach and Engagement
Hiram E. Fitzgerald, Associate Provost

University Physician
Elizabeth A. Alexander

(joint w/ VPFO)

Assistant Vice President for Operations
William J. Latta

Business Operations
Mark P. Haas, Associate
Vice President and CFO

us Planning and Administi
Jeffrey R. Kacos, Director

Campus Sustainability
Jennifer C. Battle, Director

Human Resources
Sharon E. Butler, Assistant

Vice President

Vice President for Finance and Operations and Treasurer
Fred L. Poston

Associate Vice President for Finance and CFO
Mark P. Haas

Land Management
Charles J. Reid, Director

(joint w/ANR, MSU AgBioResearch,
and MSU Foundation)

Libraries. Computing, and Technology
David A. Gift, Vice Provost

(joint w/ Provost)

Physical Plant
Ronald T. Flinn, Assistant

Vice President

Planning and Budgets
David S. Byelich, Assistant Vice

President and Director
(joint WI Provost)

Assistant Vice President for Finance and Operations
Kathryn E. Lindahi

MSU Police
James H. Dunlap, Police Chief

and Director

Residential and Hospitality Services
Verrnie G. Gore, Assistant Vice President

University Physician
Elizabeth A. Alexander

(joint WI Provost)

Senior Adviser to the President for
Diversity and Director of the Office for
Inclusion and Intercultural Initiatives

Paulette Granberry Russell

Associate Vice President and Executive
Director of the MSU Alumni Association

Scott Westerman

Vice President and Secretary.of
the Board of Trustees

Wlliam R. Beekman

Executive Officers

Vice President for Legal Affairs
and General Counsel

Robert A. Noto

Vice President for Governmental

Aff
Mark Burnham

Vice President for Research
and Graduate Studies

Stephen Hsu

Vice President for Student Affairs
and Services

Denise B. Maybank (Interim)

Vice President for University
Advancement

Robert W. Groves

Vice President for Communications
and Brand Strategy

Heather C. Swain

Other

Intercollegiate Athletics
Mark J. HolIis, Athletic Director

Internal Audit
Tom N. Luccock, Director
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Trustee Brian Breslin

450 Hannah Administration Building

East Lansing, Ml 48824

(517) 353-4647 - Office

bbreslinmsu.edu

Brian Breslin was elected to the Board of Trustees in 2010. He

earned his bachelor’s degree in food systems economics and

management from MSU in 1977, while playing basketball for

the Michigan State Spartans.

Until his retirement in 2006, Breslin worked as the senior vice

president of human resources and government relations at
Michigan-based Meijer Inc. in Grand Rapids. Having been with
Meijer since 1977, Breslin also served as the vice president for
public and consumer affairs and as a company spokesperson.

Breslin has served as a board member on the Indiana Retail

Council and the Michigan Chamber of Commerce, working to

enhance business and employment opportunities in both

states.

Page 1 of 1

Breslin resides in Williamston, Michigan. He is married to
Melinda and has four adult children.

02011 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
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Trustee Joel I. Ferguson, Chairman

1223 Turner, Suite 300

Lansing, Ml 48906

517-371-2515 - Office

Iucyjif{aol. corn

A successful business and civic leader, Joel Ferguson has

been an effective coalition builder throughout his life. Whether

its been orchestrating a surprise victory in a presidential

campaign or spearheading a multi-million dollar business

venture, Joel Ferguson has established himself as a true

leader.

Upon leaving Lansings Sexton High School in 1956, Joel

Ferguson enlisted in the U.S. Marine Corps where he served
for two years. Realizing a good education was a key to

success, he enrolled at Michigan State University in 1959. A
dedicated student and hard worker, Joel Ferguson financed his
education by working nights on the Oldsmobile assembly line

in Lansing for six years. Wanting to make a contribution to his

community and to young people, he spent the next two years

teaching and later became the director of the Greater Lansing
Urban League OJT program.

A quiet but powerful force in local and national Democratic

politics, Joel Ferguson emerged as a voice in the African-

American community during a period of civic unrest in 1967.

That same year he became the first African-American and

youngest member elected to the Lansing City Council, and he

was the first African-American to serve on the lngham County

Board of Supervisors. A major player in every presidential

election since George McGovern’s 1972 campaign, Joel

Ferguson made political history in 1988 when he orchestrated

Jesse Jackson’s stunning statewide victory in the presidential

primary. This surprise upset earned him the nickname “The

Michigan Miracle Man” and was a true testament to his political
savvy and organizational skills. Since 1988, Joel Ferguson has

been an at-large member of the Democratic National

Committee (DNC), and he is currently a member of the DNC’s

Standing Committee on Credentials. He was elected Vice

Chairman of the Democratic National Committee Black Caucus
in 2001. In 1995, President Clinton appointed Joel Ferguson a
member of the Board of Directors of the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation.

Joel Ferguson is the co-founder of F&S Development

Company, the developer of 14 multi-family residential

complexes throughout Michigan. Affordable housing is a
genuine concern of Joel Ferguson, and he has dedicated much
of his professional career to providing housing for mixed

income and senior citizens throughout the state. In 1980, he

was the co-founder, president, and owner of WFSL-TV,

htti ://trustees.msu.edulabout!feruuson.html 11/6/2012
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Channel 47, a Lansing independent affiliate. In addition, Joel

Ferguson was the founder, owner and president of WLAJ-TV,

Channel 53, Lansing’s ABC affiliate: and one of the original

organizers of several banks including Capitol National Bank,

the only locally-owned bank in Lansing. Through his efforts,

Joel Ferguson has created over 30,000 jobs for the people of

Michigan.

Throughout his life Joel Ferguson has been active in Michigan

cMc affairs. In 1986 he was elected in a statewide election to

the MSU Board of Twstees and became its chairperson in
1992. He is a Golden Heritage member of the NAACP, and sat
on the boards of the Lansing YMCA, The Boy’s Club, the

Arthritis Foundation and Junior Achievement. He chaired the

Mid-Michigan Cancer Drive as well as the United Negro

College Fund Annual Telethon. In 1989, Ferguson was
appointed to the Board of Directors of Blue Cross-Blue Shield

of Michigan Foundation. He also sat on the Greater Lansing

Safety Council and was a member of the Citizen’s Commission

to Improve Michigan Courts. In 1987 Joel Ferguson received

the A. Philip Randolph Institute Award for achievements,

dedication and tireless efforts on behalf of the people. In 2002,

Governor John Engler appointed Joel Ferguson to the eight

member Michigan Broadband Development Authority Board of

Directors.

Er 2011 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affirmativeaction, equal-opportunity employer.
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Dianne Byrum

Byrum & Fisk Advocacy

Communications

1501 North Shore Dr., Ste. B

East Lansing, MI 48823

(517) 353-4647 — Office

bvrumrnsu.edu

Dianne Byrum, a partner with Byrum & Fisk Advocacy

Communications, was elected to the Michigan State University

Board of Trustees for a term beginning Jan. 1, 2009.

Byrum formed the East Lansing-based public relations firm in

2006. Prior to that she served 24 years as a member of the

Ingham County Board of Commissioners, the Michigan House

of Representatives and the Michigan Senate.

From 1983 to 1990 she was a member of the lngham County

Board of Commissioners. She was elected to the Michigan

House in 1991, then the Michigan Senate in 1995. She

returned to the House in 2002. That year, Byrum became the

first woman elected as the House Democratic Leader.

Since 2007, Byrum has served as co-director of the Michigan

Public Leadership Program, an MSU program that trains future

public policy leaders, and treasurer of the Michigan Democratic

Party.

In 2002, Byrum received the Leadership Service Award from

the Michigan Political Leadership Program. She also is the

recipient of the “Champion of Hope” award from the Children’s

Trust Fund for her advocacy for children, as well as the

Distinguished Service Award from the Michigan Education

Association and the Public Official of the Year award from

Habitat for Humanity.

Byrum has an associate’s degree from Lansing Community

College and a Bachelor of Science degree from MSU. She

lives in Onondaga Township in lngham County. She is married

and has two adult children and two grandchildren.

© Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, Ml 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal.opportunity employer.

http://trustees.msu.edu/about/byrum.html 11/6/2012



Trustee Mitch Lyons Board of Trustees Michigan State University

Trustee Mitch Lyons

5088 Corporate Exchange Blvd., #200

Grand Rapids, Ml 49512

(616) 540-5564 - Office

mlyonsmsu.edu

Mitch Lyons was elected to the Board of Trustees for an eight-
year term beginning January 1, 2011. A native of Michigan, he
grew up primarily in the Grand Rapids area and has lived in

Rockford since 1996. After graduating from Grand Rapids

Forest Hills Northern High School in 1988, he attended

Michigan State on a football scholarship, playing for fellow

MSU trustee George Perles from 1988 to 1992.

Upon graduation from MSU in 1992 with a degree in general

business administration, Lyons continued his football career
after being drafted by the Atlanta Falcons in the sixth round of
the 1993 NFL draft. He played with the Falcons from 1993 to
1996 before signing a contract with the Pittsburgh Steelers

where he played three seasons before enduring a career-
ending knee injury in 1999.

Upon the completion of his NFL career, Lyons moved back to
Rockford full time and began his financial services career in

2000. He is a principal at Lyons Kitzrow Wealth Advisors,

consulting with individuals and businesses in the areas of

wealth accumulation, protection, and distribution, offering

investment management as well as life and disability insurance

strategies.

Lyons also is active in his community, serving on various

boards that have included Mentor One, the YMCA, and the

West Michigan Sports Awards, including eight years as

chairman.

Lyons and his wife, Angela, along with their six children, are

members of River Rock Church.

©2011 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
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Trustee Faylene Owen

450 Hannah Administration Building

East Lansing, Ml 48824-1 046

(517) 353-4647

yjneo@msn.com

Faylene Owen, owner of the award-winning Mica Corporation,

a small market research and communications firm, was elected

to the Michigan State University Board of Trustees for an eight-
year term beginning January 1,2007.

A vital force for community causes throughout her adult life,

Owen has served as chair of both the Sparrow Hospital

Foundation and Child Abuse Prevention Services. She has

also been a board member of the American Heart

Association’s fundraising campaign for women’s heart

research, MSU’s Hillel Student Center, MSU Safe Place, and
the MSU Kaleidoscope program. Owen’s community service

and success in business were recognized by the Jewish

National Fund, which presented her with its Tree of Life Award.

Owen served in state government as the director of special

projects and the deputy finance director for Governor James

Blanchard; the executive director of the Michigan Executive

Corps, a public—private partnership to bring private sector

expertise to the government; and a board member of the

Michigan State Fair. Owen also worked actively to elect

Democratic senators, members of Congress, legislators, and

local officials in Michigan. She chaired the Michigan

Democratic Party’s annual Jefferson—Jackson Day Dinner.

Nationally, Owen served as a managing trustee of the

Democratic National Committee and as the chair of the

Clinton—Gore fundraising campaign in Michigan in 1992 and

1996. Owen’s work was recognized by President Bill Clinton,

who appointed her as a national member of the White House

Fellows Commission.

Owen is especially proud that her children, two grandchildren,

and husband Larry Owen, a former Michigan State University

trustee, all attended MSU.

© 2011 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, Ml 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
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Trustee George Perles

6153W. Longview Drive

East Lansing, Ml 48823

(517) 525-3794

perlesmsu.edu

George J. Perles, who was elected to an eight-year term on

the Board of Trustees of his alma mater in November in his

first campaign for public office, is a former Spartan football

coach and athletics director, and has been the founding Chief

Executive Officer of the Motor City Bowl since 1997. This year,

the Motor City Bowl, which has become a Detroit holiday

tradition and economic development generator, had a record

attendance of 54,000-plus.

A Detroit native and graduate of the city’s Western High

School, Perles returned to MSU as head football coach in

1982, following a legendary coaching career with the
Pittsburgh Steelers, where he coached and developed the

famous “Steel Curtain” defense under Head Coach Chuck Noll,

a defense that is universally regarded as one of the best —

and rated by many as the best — in the history of the NFL.

With the Steelers, Perles won four Super Bowl rings. In 1975,

Perles was named NFL Assistant Coach of the Year.

His 1983-94 career as MSU’s head football coach was

highlighted by two Big Ten titles and a Rose Bowl victory over

Southern California. In 1987, he was named by Football News

the College Coach of the Year, national Coach of the Year by

the Columbus Touchdown Club, and Big Ten Coach of the

Year. He is the recipient of the Duffy Daugherty Football

Award, named after his beloved college coach, mentor, and

friend and given to a distinguished Spartan alumnus. He also
was named by the Detroit News a Michiganian of the Year, a
select group of citizens whose achievements and contributions

have had statewide impact.

From 1990-1992, Perles served as Director of Athletics at

MSU. During those years, the football team was Big Ten co

champions, the men’s basketball team twice was in the NCAA

tournament, and the hockey team was in the “Frozen Four.”

An Army veteran, Perles received his bachelor’s degree from

MSU in 1960, and a master’s degree in educational

administration in 1961.

Cited often for his entrepreneurial leadership in public service
activities, Perles is especially known for his long-time

association with the Special Olympics, for which he has

created and hosted a highly successful golf-outing fund raiser

since 1987.

He has served on the Board of Blue Cross and the selection

http://trustees.msu.edu/about/perles.html 11/6/2012
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committee of the Hula Bowl. He is a contributor to the Harris
Interactive College Football Poll. In 2006 he was inducted into
the Michigan Sports Hall of Fame.

Perles and his wife Sally are the parents of four children,

Kathy, Terry, John, and Patrick; they have six grandchildren.

© 2011 Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 4.8624
tdSU is an affrmative-action, equal-opportunity employer
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Diann Woodard

1101 l7thNWSte4O8

Washington, DC 20036

(517) 353-4647

diannwoodardacl.ccm

Diann Woodard, president of the Organization of School

Administrators and Supervisors, was elected to the Michigan

State University Board of Trustees for a term beginning Jan. 1,

2009.

Woodard was named president of the organization, which is

the collective bargaining agent for administrators and
supervisors employed by the Detroit Public School district,

since January 2000. Prior to that she served as vice president

from November 1998 to January 2000.

Woodard has a strong background in education, having served

as an assistant principal at two Detroit high schools.

Woodard’s professional affiliations have included national

executive vice president, as well as national treasurer, of the
American Federation of School Administrators; trustee of the
Michigan State AFL-CIO; and member of the board of directors

of Schools for the 21st Century.

In 2003 she earned the Administrator of the Year Award from

the American Federation of School Administrators and the
Distinguished Alumni Award from Wayne State University.

Woodard received a Bachelor of Arts degree in English

education from MSU in 1973, and a master’s in education from

Wayne State University in 1979.

©2011 Michigan State University Board of Trastees. East Lansing, Ml 4B824
MSU is as atyrmative-achon, equal-opportunity employer.
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Academic Programs

General Information, Policies, Procedures and Regulations
General Procedures and Regulations

The Academic Record

A Grade Report of a students grades earned in each course is available to the student at the end of each semester or summer
session electronically at www.stuinfo.msu.edu.

Due to unsatisfactory work, a student may be warned, placed on probation, academically recessed, or academically dismissed from
the university.

A permanent record of all the student’s courses, credits and grades earned is kept in the Office of the Registrar, 150 Administration
Building. The permanent record reflects all courses taken while enrolled at any academic level at Michigan State University. Records
are regularly audited and corrected as necessary. The student should maintain a record of courses, credits and grades each
semester or summer session and check from time to time to see that this record agrees with that of the university. The record may
also help the student determine eligibility for any activity that requires meeting specific scholastic standards.

© 2012 Office of the Registrar, Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
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MICHIGAN STATE
UNIVERSITY

This report presents the financial position and results of operations of Michigan State
University for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, and June 30, 2010. The financial
report has been adopted by the Board of Trustees and is provided as part of the
commitment by Michigan State University to report annually on its fiscal affairs. These
financial statements have been audited by Plante & Moran PLLC, Certified Public
Accountants. Their audit report appears on page 13.

Michigan State University has been working to advance the common good in uncommon
ways for more than 150 years. One of the top research universities in the world, MSU
focuses its vast resources on creating solutions to some of the world’s most pressing
challenges, while providing life-changing opportunities to a diverse and inclusive academic
community through more than 200 programs of study in 17 degree-granting colleges.

Throughout the year ended June 30, 2011, the University continued focusing its priorities
to maximize its resources in an increasingly challenging economic environment. Through a
long-term strategic planning initiative, the University is “Shaping the Future” by changing
the way we work, while maintaining the quality of work we do for students and communities
close to home and around the world. Through thoughtful past planning, hard work,
decision making, and collaboration, the University is positioned to pursue greater efficiency
and effectiveness in ways that do not compromise its values or vision. By adhering to its
basic financial principles, including funding recurring operations with recurring revenues,
the University has made necessary fiscal adjustments with the objective of maintaining
quality.
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Significant areas of accomplishments under the University’s “Shaping the Future” initiatives
include strategic expansion of academic programs including expansion of the College of
Human Medicine and College of Osteopathic Medicine to other areas of Michigan, and the
expansion of the College of Nursing through the Bott Building for Nursing Education and
Research — now under construction. These will further establish Michigan State University
as a leader in medical education and research. In addition, expansion of the University’s
research initiatives continues through the development of the Facility for Rare Isotope
Beams (FRIB). On track for completion by 2020, FRIB will enable scientists to make
discoveries about the properties of rare isotopes in order to better understand the physics
of nuclei, nuclear astrophysics, fundamental interactions, and applications for society.

As we move forward in a challenging economic environment, the University is adapting.
We are increasing efficiencies, creating synergies, reshaping programs and services, and
constantly investigating how resources can be shared and conserved, while continuing to
invest in and nurture the intellectual capital critical to the nation’s future. However,
challenging, these times play to the strength of the University and the can-do spirit hallmark
to MSU. As we adapt, we will remain resilient, maintaining our momentum and our
excellence, while putting every dollar possible into opportunities for students and
developing critical programs and initiatives.

Fred L. Poston
Vice President for Finance and Operations and Treasurer
October 24, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Michigan State University

Introduction

The following discussion provides an overview of the financial position of Michigan State University (the
“University”) for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 and includes an analysis of the University’s
Statement of Net Assets, which presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the institution as of the end
of the fiscal year, and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, which reflects
revenues and expenses recognized during the fiscal year. These financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The Michigan State University Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a legally separate entity which meets the
criteria set forth for component units under GASB regulations. The Foundation provides financial support for
the objectives, purposes, and programs of the University. Although the University does not control the
timing, purpose, or amount of its receipts from the Foundation, the resources (and income thereon) which the
Foundation holds and invests are dedicated to benefit the University. Because these resources held by the
Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a
component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements. The
Foundation is a private organization that reports under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB
revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation
financial information included in the University’s financial report to account for these differences.

The University’s financial statements, related footnote disclosures, and discussion and analysis (which
excludes the Foundation), have been prepared by management. The discussion and analysis should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements and footnotes.

Statement of Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets includes all assets and liabilities, It is prepared under the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when services are provided and expenses and
liabilities are recognized when others provide the services, regardless of when cash is exchanged. Assets
and liabilities are generally measured using current values. One exception is capital assets, which are stated
at historical cost less an allowance for depreciation.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

A summarized comparison of the University’s assets, liabilities and net assets at June 30, 2011, 2010, and
2009 follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Current assets $ 428 $ 420 $ 395
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
and restricted investments 111 203 -

Endowment and other investments 1,773 1,465 1,372
Capital assets, net 1,703 1,622 1,508
Other 120 134 153

Total assets 4,135 3,844 3,428

Current liabilities 408 387 483
Noncurrent liabilities 1,003 989 654
Total liabilities 1,411 1,376 1,137
Total net assets $ 2,724 $ 2,468 $ 2,291

Current assets:

Current assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, collateral from securities lending, investments, net
accounts and interest receivable, and other assets. The net increase in current assets in 2011 is due in part
to a net $15 million increase in federal, state, and local sponsored program accounts receivable. Sponsored
program accounts receivable balances vary from year to year due in part to timing differences between
amounts expended in accordance with grant or contract guidelines and actual cash draws from the grantor.
This increase is partially offset with a $10 million decrease in collateral from the securities lending program.
The decrease in securities lending collateral is due primarily to a change in the makeup of the underlying
investment holdings under the securities lending program as of June 30, 2011 and their related propensity
for lending. The net decrease in 2010 is due in part to a net $61 million increase in cash and cash
equivalents and investments (primarily a function of the University’s operating, financing, and investing
activities as reported in the Statement of Cash Flows), and a net $13 million increase in the amount of
pledges receivable expected to be collected in the next fiscal year. These increases were partially offset by
a $46 million decrease in collateral from the securities lending program.

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted investments

All balances represent unspent bond proceeds which are externally restricted for the construction or
purchase of capital assets. The decrease in 2011 represents the spending of Series 2010A bond proceeds
consistent with their restricted purpose. The increase in 2010 was due to the Series 2010A issuance in April
2010.

Endowment and other investments

At June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, the University’s endowment investments totaled $1,395 million (an
increase of $259 million) and $1,136 million (an increase of $90 million), respectively. Market value (realized
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

and unrealized) increases within the investment portfolio accounted for $182 million and $103 million in 2011
and 2010, respectively. In addition, endowment gifts totaled $19 million in 2011 and $28 million in 2010,
while the draw on the endowment’s accumulated net capital gains totaled $11 million in 2011 and $41 million
in 2010. During 2011, $60 million of investments were reallocated to designated endowment investments,
consistent with the University’s Board approved cash management and investment plan. No allocation was
made in 2010.

Other investments consist primarily of the Liquidity Reserve Pool component of the University’s Operating
Cash Pool, which totaled $244 million and $233 million at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Funded
retirement and postemployment benefit reserves ($86 million in 2011 and $72 million in 2010) substantially
account for the remainder of other investments.

For the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the total returns on investments were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Operating Cash Pool:

Liquidity Pool 1.4% 3.9% 3.6%
Liquidity Reserve Pool 5.0% 12.2% (2.1)%

Common Investment Fund 20.6% 11.4% (1 8.0)%
Other Separately Invested Investments 35.9% (38.2)% 23.4%

Capital assets

The University continues to implement its long-range plan to modernize and renew its teaching, research and
residential life facilities in support of its missions. At June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the University’s
investment in capital assets was as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Land $ 32 $ 32 $ 26
Buildings and site improvements 2,156 2,125 1,929
Construction in progress 205 163 204
Software and other intangibles 87 - -

Equipment and other 626 597 562
Museum collections 9 9 8
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,412) (1,304) (1,221)

$1,703 $1,622 $1,508

Major additions to buildings and site improvements during 2011 include $9 million for the Secchia Center, $6
million for the Facility for Rare Isotope Beams Utility Relocation, and $4 million for Hubbard Hall First Floor
Commons Renovation. Major additions to buildings and site improvements during 2010 include $71 million
for the Secchia Center, $23 million for the Farm Lane Underpass, $16 million for Wharton Center for the
Performing Arts alterations and expansion, $17 million for the Cyclotron Low Energy Experimental Research
and Office additions, and $13 million for MSU’s Surplus Store & Recycling Center.

The addition to software and other intangibles during 2011 was the implementation of MSU’s Enterprise
Business Systems Project, which went live January 1, 2011. This was a multi-year system development
project that updated and integrated the financial and human resource/payroll systems across the University.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

Construction in progress reflects multi-year projects which, once completed and placed into service, are
generally categorized as buildings and site improvements. The 2011 balance includes $45 million for the
Brody Hall renovation, $26 million for Plant Science Building expansion, $24 million for the Eli and Edythe
Broad Art Museum, and $17 million for Wells Hall addition and Old Horticulture Building renovation. The
2010 balance includes $69 million for MSU’s Enterprise Business Systems Project, $34 million for the Brody
Hall renovation, and $8 million for the Eli and Edythe Broad Art Museum.

As of June 30, 2011, the University had initiated plans and incurred certain contractual commitments related
to the construction and renovation of various facilities. The costs to complete the projects are estimated to
be $168 million and are to be funded from debt proceeds, other University funds, and private gifts.

Current liabilities:

Current liabilities consist primarily of trade accounts and interest payable, accrued compensation and other
personnel costs, obligations under securities lending, deferred revenues, and other liabilities payable within
one year or less. The net increase in 2011 is due in part to $22 million increase in trade accounts payable.
Trade accounts payable balances vary from year to year due in part to timing of University initiatives and
payments of related programmatic costs. In addition, debt interest payable increased $7 million and the
current portion of long-term debt and other obligations increased $23 million. The net increase in the current
portion of long-term debt and other obligations is due in part to the issuance of $14 million of General
Revenue Commercial Paper (short term financing), Series B, which was used to finance or reimburse all or
part of the costs of capital projects ($9 million) and refund outstanding General Revenue Bonds, Series
2002B ($5 million). In addition, a net issuance of $43 million of General Revenue Commercial Paper, Series
C proceeds were used to refund outstanding General Revenue Commercial Paper, Series A ($35 minion)
and finance or reimburse all or part of the costs of eligible capital projects ($8 million). Partially offsetting
these increases, is a decrease of $24 million in accrued compensation and other personnel costs primarily
due to realigning the timing of academic employee compensation payments to correspond with the nine
month academic duty period (September — May annually), resulting in no accrual at June 30, 2011. In
addition, obligations under securities lending decreased $11 million due primarily to a change in the make-up
of the underlying investment holdings under the securities lending program as of June 30, 2011 and their
related propensity for lending. The net decrease in current liabilities in 2010 is due in part to a $47 million
decrease in obligations under securities lending and a $39 million net decrease in the current portion of long-
term debt and other obligations, due primarily to converting $116 million of General Revenue Commercial
Paper to long-term debt, offset by a net issuance of $84 million of new General Revenue Commercial Paper.

Noncurrent liabilities, primarily debt:

At June 30, 2011, the University had noncurrent debt and other obligations outstanding of $758 million
compared with $779 million at June 30, 2010. This balance is comprised primarily of outstanding General
Revenue Bonds of $713 million and $734 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. The decrease in
noncurrent debt and other obligations is due primarily to scheduled principal debt payments of $14 million on
outstanding General Revenue Bonds and the current refunding of General Revenue Bonds, Series 20028
($5 million) with General Revenue Commercial Paper, Series B. The University periodically reviews its debt
capacity and related capital asset needs to optimize the use of long-tern, resources. The University’s
outstanding General Revenue debt carry an investment grade credit rating from Moody’s and Standard &
Poor’s of Aal and AA, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

The University faces the continuing challenge of funding its increasing health care and dental benefits costs.
This includes the cost of providing postemployment health and dental benefits to eligible employees (other
postemployment benefits, or OPEB). For the year ended June 30, 2011, the University has estimated the
cost (annual expense) of providing OPEB through an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2010 and adjusted
for 2010-11 health care cost experience. The actuarial valuation computes an annual required contribution,
which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover current year costs
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of thirty years. The University’s total unfunded
OPEB obligation in 2011 and 2010 is estimated at $792 million and $783 million, respectively. The
University has recorded a noncurrent liability of $170 million and $128 million for 2011 and 2010,
respectively, representing the net OPEB obligation (the annual required contribution less actual retiree health
and dental payments made during the respective fiscal years). This increase is due to the continued
amortization (over thirty years) of the total unfunded OPEB obligation. The University discontinued providing
retiree health and dental care benefits to new employees beginning July 1, 2010.

Net assets:

Net assets represent residual University assets after liabilities are deducted. The University’s net assets at
June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 are summarized as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt $ 991 $ 987 $ 974

Restricted:
Noriexpendable 353 447 393
Expendable 591 396 360

Total restricted 944 843 753
Unrestricted 789 638 564

Total net assets $ 2,724 $ 2,468 $ 2,291

The following is a breakdown of net assets at June 30, 2011. See footnote 15 for further information
(amounts are presented in millions of dollars):

Unrestricted
29.0% [$7891

Restricted.
nonexpendable

13.0% [$3591

Invested In cepftal assets,
net ol related debt

36.4% [$9011

TOTAL NET ASSETS $2.7 BILLION

Restricted -

expendable
21,6% [$5911

D.algns.dICm.,Itt.d,

Ceptial C Infra,lmdw. 10,8% $2U

Prairemmatic eom,aIb,emta 8,0% *270

Depa,lme,t.t working c.pitai 7,8% 8213

Qoa.i.ndovnn.nla 3.0% $21

Raitrematit and ingirmno. .tL2bl. .11*31
Tout Dgaat.dtCoww,dtbd 28,0% *779

Unconenifted ,.9431 jj9

28,8% 2711
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State UnIversity

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, represent the University’s land, buildings, software
and equipment net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding pnncipal balances of debt attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted nonexpendable net assets are subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently. Such net assets include the corpus portion (historical value) of gifts to the University’s
permanent endowment funds and certain investment earnings stipulated by the donor to be reinvested
permanently. -.

Restricted expendable net assets are subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use. Such
net assets include the net appreciation of the University’s permanent endowment funds that have not been
stipulated by the donor to be reinvested permanently, restricted quasi-endowments, restricted gifts, and
federal and state sponsored programs.

Although unrestricted net assets are not subject to externally imposed restrictions, virtually all of the
University’s unrestricted net assets are subject to internal designation to meet various specific commitments,
including funding the completion of the 2011 summer semester and the first quarter of fiscal year 2012,
maintaining reserves for capital projects, the continued recognition of the OPEB obligation, working capital
for self-supporting departmental activities, and unrestricted quasi and term endowments.

Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are an indicator of the improvement or erosion of the
University’s financial health when considered with non-financial facts such as enrollment levels, strength of
faculty, and condition of facilities. In addition, net assets are directly affected by the performance of the
University’s investments. Net assets increased during 2011 and 2010 by focusing on cost controls, pursuing
a long-term investment strategy to maximize risk-adjusted total returns, and appropriately utilizing debt and
other resources to meet programmatic needs, including the maintenance and replacement of the University’s
infrastructure.

The University’s ongoing review of its infrastructure indicates a need to expend approximately $850 million
over the next 10 years to modernize and renovate aging teaching, research, housing and other support
facilities, utility systems, and roads, consistent with its just-in-time maintenance strategy, and to upgrade
administrative and other campus-wide technology systems. The University intends to address these
maintenance and technology needs through the use of capital and infrastructure reserves, appropriate use of
additional borrowing, and efforts to obtain gifts, grants, and capital appropriations.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Aisets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets preserts the operating results of the
University, as well as the nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues primarily include net
student tuition and fees, grants and contracts, and auxiliary activities. Given a public university’s
dependency on revenues such as state appropriations, gifts, and investment income, which are prescribed
by GASB as nonoperating revenues operating expenses will exceed operating revenues resulting in an
operating loss. Net nonoperating revenues or expenses are an integral component in determining the
increase or decrease in net assets.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contInued)
Michigan State University

A summarized comparison of the University’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets for the years
ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees, net of allowances $ 568 $ 542 $ 510
Grants and contracts 373 373 340
Auxiliary activities 280 276 275
Other operating revenues 168 148 138
Total operating revenues 1,389 1,339 1,263

Operating expenses:
Instruction and departmental research 561 556 551
Research 294 277 262
Public services 220 228 212
Academic support 78 75 77
Student services 32 32 31
Scholarships and fellowships 53 50 41
Institutional support 94 91 90
Operation and maintenance of plant 138 143 158
Auxiliary enterprises 269 256 256
Depreciation 116 98 91
Other operating expenses, net 3 4 6
Total operating expenses 1,858 1,810 1,775

Operating loss (469) (471) (512)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State operating appropriation 284 284 293
State agricultural experiment station appropriation 33 18 34
State cooperative extension service appropriation 29 18 30
State appropriated federal fiscal stabilization funds - 36
Federal Pell grant revenue 43 39 24
Gifts 46 53 55
Net investment income (loss) 289 164 (243)
Interest expense on capital asset related debt (39) (20) (23)
Other nonoperating revenues, net 5 2 22
Net nonoperating revenues 690 594 192

Income (loss) before other revenues 221 123 (320)

State capital appropriations - 1 2
Capital grants and gifts 18 28 12
Additions to permanent endowments 17 25 16

Increase (decrease) in net assets 256 177 (290)

Net assets, beginning of year 2,468 2,291 2,581
Net assets, end of year $ 2,724 $ 2,468 $ 2,291
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

The following is a graphic illustration of total net revenue by source for the year ended June 30, 2011
(amounts are presented in millions of dollars):

OPERATING Other operating revenues NET NONOPERATING
REVENUES Auxiliary activities 7.9% ($1683 AND OTHER REVENUES

66.7% L$1,3893 13.2% [$2801 — 34.3% [$7253

KD::
Investments and

other revenue
1 2.1% [$2561

Grants and contracts
17.7% ($3731

Federal Pelt
grant revenue

2.0% [$433

Gifts, capital grants, and
additions to permanent

endowments
StatelCapltal 3.8% ($811

appropriations
16.4% ($3483

Student tuition end teas
26.9%[$5683

.,

TOTAL REVENUE $2.1 BILLION

The University is supported by a diverse stream of revenue which supplements its student tuition and fees,
including state appropriations, federal and state sponsored programs, private gifts and grants, and
investment income. The University continues to seek funding from all possible sources consistent with its
mission and to manage the financial resources realized from these efforts to fund its operations.

Operating revenues: The most significant source of operating revenue for the University is tuition and fees
(net of scholarship allowances), totaling $568 million and $542 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Gross
tuition and fees revenue increased 4.7% in 2011, which includes a 4.0% effective rate increase in tuition and
fees and a 0.7% revenue increase from additional student credit hours taken and changes in the student
blend. The 8.3% increase in 2010 reflected a 7.5% effective rate increase in tuition and fees and a 0.8%
revenue increase from additional student credit hours taken and changes in the student blend. Other major
revenue sources in 2011 include auxiliary activities of $280 million (an increase of $4 nillion) and federal
grants and contracts of $297 million (an increase of $16 million), including $286 million for sponsored
programs.

Net nonoperating and other revenues: The primary source of this net revenue is State appropriations, which
totaled $346 million in 2011, a decrease of $10 million (2.8%). Base appropriations funded directly by the
State increased $26 million, offset with the elimination of $36 million in one-time American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) funds received in 2010 (none in 2011). In 2011, the University received
$284 million in funding for general operations, consistent with amount funded directly by the State in 2010,
offset with the elimination of $8 million in one-time ARRA funding received in 2010. In 2011, Michigan State
University Extension and MSU AgBioResearch appropriations totaled $62 million, a 72.2% increase over
2010 appropiiations ($36 million), offset with the elimination of $28 million ri one-time ARRA funding
received in 2010. Other significant components of net nonoperatirig revenues in 2011 include gift revenue
(decreased $7 million), and net investment income (increased $125 million). In 2010, gift revenue decreased
$2 million, and net investment income increased $407 million due to recovery of market conditions from
2009.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Michigan State University

The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses by source for the year ended June 30, 2011
(amounts are presented in millions of dollars):

Student services,
scholarships and
fellowships, and
other expenses

DepreciatIon
52% ($118]

Instruction end

AuxIlla departmental
research

1 30.2% ($5611

Operation and
maintenance of

plant
7.4% ($1381

institutional
support

5.1% ($94J Research
15.8% ($256]

Academic support
4.2% ($78]

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $1.9 BILUON

During 2011 $1,075 million was expended for the core missions of the University - instruction and
departmental research, research, and public services, an increase of $14 million (1.3%) over 2010.
Instruction and departmental research expenses increased $5 million (0.8%), due primarily to salary
increases (0.5%). Reseaith and public service expenses increased $9 million due in part to growth in
sponsored programs ($4 million). Auxiliary enterprises (activities which provide services to students, faculty,
staff, and the public) increased $13 million (5.3%), while expenses for the operation and maintenance of
plant decreased $5 million (3.9%),

Economic Outlook

The University’s revenue mix is closely associated with the level of State support. Due to continued
economic pressures affecting the State of Michigan, the 2011-12 fiscal year state appropriations have been
reduced 15.0% ($52 milbon). Static or declining State appropriations generally result in increased tuition and
fees. Consequently, the Board of Trustees approved a 6.9% increase for faIl 2011 in-state undergraduate
tuition. In addition, the University has undertaken a number of reductions, including workforce reductions,
trimmed benefit programs, forgone salary increases, and operating funding cuts for all units. Continued
economic pressures affecting the State may continue to result in declining adjustments in State
appropriations for higher education. Despite constrained resources, the University continues to focus on
providing internationally competitive undergraduate and graduate education, research, and outreach for the
benefit of Michigan, the country, and the world.
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Board of Trustees

-

Michigan State University

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Michigan State University (the
“University”) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related statements of revenue, expenses, and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the University’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of the Michigan State
University Foundation (the “Foundation”), which present all the assets and revenue of the discretely
presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon has been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Foundation, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Michigan State University and its component unit as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and
the results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 6, 2011
on our consideration of Michigan State University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2011. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide opinions on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis presented on pages 4 through 12 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplemental information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management, regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemental information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

PLL C

Kalamazoo, Michigan
October 6, 2011

PraxiW
MEMBER

I GLOEAL D.LLJANGE OF
rDPENOEN1 FiRMS



STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
Michigan State University

June 30,
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Collateral from securities lending
Accounts and interest receivable, net
Student loans receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Inventories and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

2011 2010
(In thousands)

$ 18,954 $ 19,811
174,752 173,653

12,880 22,801
170,114 150,386

8,566 9,224
24,109 29,719
18,305 14,184

427,680 419,778

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments

Endowment investments

Other Investments

Student loans receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Investments in joint ventures
Deferred outflows from hedging derivative instruments
Unamortized bond origination costs
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

Accounts and Interest payable

Accrued personnel costs

Obligations under securities lending
Accrued self-insurance liabilities
Payroll taxes and other payroll deductions
Deposits held for others

Deferred revenues

Current portion of long term debt and other obligations
Total current liabilities

TOTAL ASSETS

23,219

87,360
1,395,282

378,127

36,312

36,893

6,676

35,770
4,706

1,703,365
3,707,710

$ 4,135,390

$ 87,913
49,256
20,31 7

15,073

22,188

31,754
86,155
95,702

408,358

44,110

159,122
1,136,440

328,417

36,998
43,106

6,329
42,885

4,860
1,621,531

3,423,798

$ 3,843,576

$ 58,855

73,223
30,853

13,770
26,841

29,653

81,505

72,623

387,323

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued personnel costs
Accrued self-insurance liabWiles
Hedging derivative instruments

Net other postemployment benefit obligation
Long term debt and other obligations

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total lIabIlIties

Net assets:

31,937

6,881

35,770

169,608
758,304

1,002,500

1,410,858

30,841

7,932
42,885

128,234

778,583

988,475

1,375,798

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:

991,459 986,891

Nonexpendable

Expendable
Unrestricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

352,696

590,891

789,486

2,724,532

$ 4,136,390

447,289

395,368

638,230

2,487,778

$ 3,843,576

See accompanyng notes
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Michigan State University Foundation

June 30,
2011 2010

ASSETS (In thousands)
Cash equivalents $ 1926 $ 3,252
Interest and dividends receivable 212 159
Grants and contracts receivable, net 400 778
Other receivables, net 1,665 1,781
Investments:

Marketable securities 209,297 177,828
Investments in limited partnerships 100,683 97,245

Venture capital 43,560 33,257
Cash value of life insurance 2,142 1,484
Land held for investment 3,944 3,830
Other investments 1,180 1,400
Investment in Spartan Ventures LLC - 460
Investment in Research Park 5,920 5,932
Prepaid expenses 119 111
Property and equipment, net 10,055 10,445
Intangible assets, net 846 850
Other assets 4 1

TOTAL ASSETS $ 381,953 $ 338,813

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Uabilities:

Accruedexpensesandotherpayables $ 3,809 $ 3,181
Deterred compensation 177 177
Note payable- deterred compensation 196 196
Note payable 4,228 4,327
Trusts and annuities payable 9,501 9,163
Deferred gifts 433 433
Deposit held for Michigan State University 9,596 3,804
Obligations under life estate agreements 9 13

Total liabilIties 27,949 21,294

Net assets:

Unrestricted 309,392 278,427
Temporarily restricted 30,313 26,344
Permanently restricted 14,299 12,746

Total net assets 354,004 317,519

TOTAL LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS $ 381,953 $ 338,813

See accompanying notes
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Michigan State University

Year ended June 30,
OPERATING REVENUES 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Student tuition and fees $ 661,110 $ 631665
Less: scholarship allowances 92,665 89,276

Net student tuition and fees 568,445 542,389

State of Michigan grants and contracts 10,356 19,152
Federal grants and contracts 296,874 280,744
Local and private sponsored programs 65,816 73.190
Interest and fees on student loans 940 837
Departmental activities (net of scholarship allowances of

$4,476 in 2011 and $4,644 in 2010) 166,897 146,752
Auxitary activities (net of room and board allowances of

$16,460 in 2011 and $16,237 in 2010> 280,227 276,215
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,389,655 1,339,279

OPERATING EXPENSES
instruction and departmental research 560,794 556,404
Research 293,705 276,580
Public services 220,549 228,084
Academic support 78,197 74,924
Student services 31840 31,802
Scholarships and fellowships 53,357 49943
Institutional support 93,646 90,979
Operation and maintenance of plant 137,919 143,467
Auxiliary enterprises 269,486 255,933
Depreciation 116,183 98,429
Other operating expenses, net 2,520 3,527

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,858,176 1,810,072

Operating loss (468,621) (470,793)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State operating appropriatIon 283,685 283,909
State agricultural experiment station appropriation 33,243 18,116
State cooperative extension service appropriation 28,673 17,825
State appropriated federal fiscal stabilization funds

- 35,688
Federal Peil grant revenue 43,424 39,313
Gifts 46,196 52,839
Net investment Income 288,510 164,110
Interest expense on capital asset related debt (38,878) (19,467)
Other nonoperating revenues, net 5,552 2,100

Net nonoperating revenues 890,405 594,433

INCOME BEFORE OTHER REVENUES 221,784 123,640

State capital appropriations
- 500

Capital grants and gifts 17,743 28,095
Additions to permanentendowments 17,227 24,578

Increase in net assets 256754 176,813

Net assets, beginning of year 2,467,778 2,290,965
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,724,532 $ 2,467,778

See accompanying notes
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Michigan State University Foundation

Year ended June 30,2011
Unrestricted Temporarily Permanently

Funds Restricted Restricted Total
REVENUE, GMNS AND OThER SUPPORT: (In thousands)

Contributions $ 67 $ 4.87 1 $ 152 $ 5,090
Equity earnings - subsidiaries (143) (143)
Incomefrom investments 8,026 455 634 9,115
Royalty income 1,133 1,133
Rental income 1,076 1,076
Rental expenses (3,234) (3,234)
Realized and unrealized gain on securities 37,483 2,689 1,124 41,296
Grants and contracts 2,523 2,523
Other income 62 62
Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions 22 (10) (12) -

Current year transfers 4,383 (4,035) (347) -

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OThER SUPPORT 51,398 3,959 1,551 56,918

EXPENSES AND LOSSES:
Contributions to the University 11,418 11,418
Patent expense 908 908
Investment management fees 2,382 2,382
Investment consulting fees 460 460
Adjustments to value of annuities payable (119> (119)
Management and general 3,837 3,837
Postretirement benefits

Net periodic benefit cost 67 87
Changes other than net periodic benefit cost (929) (929)

MBI program expenses 2,409 2,409
TOTAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES 20,433 - 20,433

Change in net assets 30,965 3,969 1,551 36,485
Net assets, beginning of year 278,427 26344 12,748 317,519

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 309,392 $ 30,313 $ 14,299 $ 354,004

Year ended June 30, 2010
Unrestricted Temporarily Permanently

Funds Restricted Restricted Total
REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT: (In thousands)

Contributions $ 39 $ 5,916 $ 108 S 6,063
Equity earnings - subsidiaries 59 59
Income from investments 2,674 25 386 3,085
Royalty income 1,416 1,416
Rental income 1,161 1,161
Rental expenses (3,112) (3,112)
Realized and mrealized gain on securities 22,504 1,858 825 25,187
Grants and contracts 2,706 2,706
Other income 222 222
Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions (1,672) 1.677 (5) -

Currentyeartransfers 5,859 (5,315) (544)

____________

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 31,856 4,161 770 36,787

EXPENSES AND LOSSES:
Contributions to the University 19,594 19,504
Patent expense 914 914
Investment management fees 2,665 2,665
Investment consulting fees 373 373
Adjustments to value of annuities payable (1,821) (1,821>
Management and general 3,580 3,560
Postretirement benefits

Netpenodicbenefltcost 119 119
Operational expenses - Spartan Ventures 37 37
MBI program expenses 2,238

____________ ____________

2,238
TOTAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES 27,589 - - 27,589

Change in netassets 4,267 4,161 770 9,198
Net assets, beginning of year 274,160 22,183 11,978 308,321

NETASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 278,427 $ 26,344 $ 12,748 $ 317,519

See accompanying notes
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Michigan State University

Cash flows from operating activities
Tuition and fees
Research grants and contracts
Auxiliary activities
Departmental activities

Interest and fees on student loans
Loans issued to students
Collection of loans from students
Scholarships and fellowships

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees
Other payments

Net cash used by operating activities

Year ended June 30,
2011 2010

(in thousands)

$ 571968 $ 547036
358069 367,459
285.989 273,625
181,977 152,038

940 837
(8550) (9,728)
9,894 9,308

(73,520) (59,507)
(447,204) (437,890)

(1,192,321) (1,161,752)
(18,574) (14,917)

(331,332) (333,491)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State appropriations
Federal Pell grant revenue

Gifts
Endowment gifts

Mlliam 0. Ford Direct Lending receipts
Mlliam 0. Ford Direct Lending disbursements

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital appropriations

Capital gifts and grants
Proceeds from issuance of debt and other long term obligations
Purchase of capitai assets

Proceeds from sale of capdai assets
Principal paid on capital debt
interest paId
Other receipts (payments)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

29,250

65,809
(194,351)

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income, net
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided (used) by Investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

107,717
1,741,967

(1,797,615)

52,069

(21,748)

69,653
4,206,642

(4,426,498)

(150,201)

48,792

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equlvalents end of year

63,921

$ 42,173
15,129

$ 63,921

340,919

43,424

46,472

17,268

348,242
(348,764)
447,561

362,291
39,313

53.116
24,545

332,470
(332,521)
479,214

500
15,290

611,090
(214,950)

641
(320,702)

(21,485)

(17,114)

53,270

367

(63,559)
(34,384)

6,822

(190,046)

See accompanying notes
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued
Michigan State University

Year ended June 30,
Reconciliation of net operatin9 loss to 2011 2010
cash flows from operating actIvltIes (in thousands)

Operating loss $ (468,621) $ (470,793)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to

net cash used by operating activities:
Depredation expense 116,183 98,429
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (14,838) (4,647)
Student loans receivable 1,344 (421)
Inventories and other assets (4,121) (859)
Investments in joint ventures (347) (347)
Unamortized bond oigination costs 154 (1,612)
Accounts payable 18,061 1,595
Accrued personnel costs (22,871) 9,051
Payroll taxes and other payroll deductions (4,653) (11,761)
Deposits held for others 2,101 6,959
Deferred revenueS 4,650 3,337
Accrued self-insurance liabilities 252 (2551)
Net other postemployment benelit obligation 41,374 40,129

Net cash used by operating activitIes $ (331,332) $ (333,491)

See accompanying notes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (All dollar figures stated In these Notes are in thousands)
Michigan State University

1. OrganIzation, basis of presentation, reporting entity, and summary of significant accounting policies

Organization:

Michigan State University (the “University”) was founded in 1855 as the Agricultural College of the State of Michigan. It was the
first institution of higher learning in the nation to teach scientific agriculture and in 1863 became a pioneer land grant college
under the Mornll Act. The University has grown into a comprehensive research university providing undergraduate, graduate,
and professional degree programs. The University is not a component unit of the State of Michigan as defined by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Basis of presentation:

The University follows all applicable GASB pronouncements. In addition, the University applies all applicable Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions and
Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The University has elected not to apply FASB
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for publicly
owned colleges and universities and is presented in accordance with the reporting model as prescribed in Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis-for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges and Universities, as amended by GASB Statements No. 37 and No. 38. The
University follows the “business-type” activities requirements of GASB Statement No. 34. This approach requires the following
components of the University’s financial statements:

• Managements Oiscussion and Analysis.
• Basic Financial Statements: Statement of Net Assets; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets;

Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements.

GASB Statement No. 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and requires
that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following four net asset categories:

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

• Restricted:
Nonexpendable — Net assets subject to externally imposed constraints that they be maintained permanently by the
University. Nonexpendable net assets include the corpus portion (historical value) of gifts to the University’s
permanent endowment funds and certain investment earnings stipulated by the donor to be reinvested permanently.

Expendable — Net assets whose use by the University is subject to externally imposed constraints that can be
fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those constraints or that expire by the passage of time. Expendable
net assets include net appreciation of the University’s permanent endowment funds that have not been stipulated by
the donor to be reinvested permanently.

• Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted net assets may be
designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) or may otherwise be
limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. Substantially all unrestricted net assets are designated for
academic, research, and outreach programs and initiatives, postemployment benefits, and capital asset renewals and
replacements.

Reporting entity:

The Michigan State University Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a legally separate, tax-exempt entity which meets the criteria set
forth for component units under GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units.
The Foundation provides financial support for the objectives, purposes, and programs of the University. Although the University
does not control the timing, purpose, or amount of its receipts from the Foundation, the resources (and income thereon) which
the Foundation holds and invests are dedicated to benefit the University. Because the resources held by the Foundation can
only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the University and its
Statements of Financial Position and Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets are discretely presented in the
University’s financial statements. In addition, the Foundation’s significant notes are summarized in Footnote 4.

The Foundation is a private organization that reports under FASB standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and
presentation features are different from those under GASB. No modifications have been made to the Foundation financial
information included in the University’s financial report to account for these differences.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained by a written request to: Michigan State University Foundation,
2727 Alliance Drive, Suite C, Lansing, Michigan 48910-3338.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents — For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the University defines cash and cash equivalents
as highly liquid short-term (90 days or less) investments that bear little or no market risk. Cash equivalents held in the Liquidity
Reserve Pool (LRP), Common Investment Fund (CIF), and other investment funds are included in investments because the
intent of these funds is long-term appreciation. Any cash balances held in these funds at the date of the financial statements are
due to timing of reinvesting the proceeds within the fund.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted investments — Restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted
investments represent unspent bond proceeds that are externally restricted for the construction or purchase of capital assets.

Pledges — Financial support in the form of pledges is received from business enterprises, foundations and individuals. Revenue
from gift pledges is recorded only when there is an unconditional promise to pay and all eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, have been met. Contributions to permanent and term endowments are not recognized as assets until actually
received.

Inventories — Inventories are recorded using various methods, including last in first out (LIFO) and first in first out (FIFO).

Investments — All investments are stated at fair value. Investments in publicly traded securities are stated at fair value as
established by major securities markets. Non-publicly traded investments are valued based on independent appraisals and
estimates considering market prices of similar investments.

Capital assets — Capital assets are stated at cost or, when donated, at fair market value at date of gift. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method, with a full-year expense in the year of acquisition and none in the year of disposal.
Assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives ranging from four to forty years for the respective assets. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. The
University does not capitalize certain works of art or historical treasures (except for certain museum collections) that are held for
exhibition, education, research, or public service. These collections are neither disposed of for financial gain nor encumbered in
any way. Accordingly, such collections are not recognized or capitalized for financial statement purposes.

Compensated absences — University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service.
Vacation pay is fully vested when earned. Upon separation from service, employees are paid accumulated vacation and sick pay
based upon the nature of separation (death, retirement, or termination). Certain limitations have been placed on the hours of
vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at death, retirement, or termination. Unused
hours exceeding these limitations are forfeited.

Deferred revenue — Deferred revenue consists primarily of advance ticket sales for athletic events, summer school tuition not
earned during the current year, and contract and sponsored program advances.

Derivative instruments — Derivative instruments consist of interest rate swap agreements and are stated at fair value based on
the zero coupon valuation method.

Bond issuance costs — Bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized over the life of the bond issue.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues — Operating activities as reported on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets are those activities that generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for
providing services and payments made for services or goods received. Nearly all of the University’s expenses are from
exchange transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as nonoperating revenues,
as defined by GASB Statement No. 34, including state appropriations, federal Pell grant revenue, gifts, and investment income.
Restricted and unrestricted resources are spent and tracked at the discretion of the recipient University department within the
guidelines of donor restrictions, if any.

Student tuition and fees — Student tuition and fee revenues are reported net of scholarship allowances in the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Scholarship allowances represent the difference between the stated charge
for goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by the students or third parties on behalf of the
students, where the University has discretion over such expenses.

Auxiliary activities — Auxiflary activities primarily represent revenues generated from University Residential and Hospitality
Services, Intercollegiate Athletics, and various other departmental activities that provide services to the student body, faculty,
staff, and general public.

Donor restricted endowments — Under Michigan law set forth in the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act,
as adopted in Michigan in 2009 (UPMlFA), the Board acts in a fiduciary capacity as trustee of its endowment funds. UPMIFA

21



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

requires that the Board exercise its fiduciary duties prudently and consider both the charitable purposes and needs of the
University and the purposes of the specific endowment regarding current expenditures and preservation of the purchasing power
of the funds. Under the spending policy established by the Board, 500% of the average market value of endowment
investments for the twenty quarters of the five calendar years prior to the beginning of the fiscal year has been authorized for
expenditure.

Eliminations — In preparing the financial statements, the University eliminates inter-fund assets and liabilities that would
otherwise be reflected twice in the Statements of Net Assets. Similarly, revenues and expenses related to internal service
activities are also eliminated from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Student tuition and
residence fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applied to student accounts where the University has discretion
over such expenses, while stipends and other payments made directly to students are presented as scholarship and fullowship
expenses. •

Use of estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income taxes — The University is a part of the State of Michigan for purposes of Internal Revenue Code Section 115, and is an
organization as described in Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The University’s income generally is exempt from federal
income taxes, although income from certain actMties may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income.

Reclassificatlons — Certain amounts from the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

The University’s cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, current
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, noncurrent
Total cash and cash equivalents

2011

$ 18,954

23,219

$ 42,173

2010

$ 19,811

44,110

$ 63,921

Of the bank balances for cash, $250 of the total $27,154 in 2011 and $11,186 in 2010 were covered by federal depository
insurance. The remaining amounts were uninsured and uncollateralized, as banks holding deposits of the University are legally
prohibited from collateralizing these deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

3. Investments

The University manages investments in accordance with the policy approved by the Board. The investment policy distinguishes
guidelines for the Liquidity Pool (LP), Liquidity Reserve Pool (LRP), and Common Investment Fund (CIF). In addition, the
University has other investments that are restricted by external agreements or by special donor limitations (Other).

Securities lending Transactions: The University participates in a Board-authorized securities lending program whereby
University securities are contractually loaned to approved borrowers in exchange for the receipt of collateral which is invested.
The University had loaned securities with a market value of approximately $19,848 arid $30,083 at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. One of the University’s custodians is an agent in lending the Universitys domestic securities for cash collateral of
102% and international securities for cash collateral of 105%. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts the University owed the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owed the
University. The contract with the lending agent requires it to indemnify the University if the borrowers fail to return the securities
(and if the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent). All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the
University or the borrower. As a means of managing the University’s interest rate risk, the securities lending agreement limits the
difference between the average weighted maturity of securities loans and the average weighted maturity of the cash collateral
investment portfolio to a maximum of 90 days. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the difference was less than 90 days.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University had the following investments:

Investment type
Investment pools

U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Government agencies
Municipal bonds

Corporate bonds
Asset-backed securities
U.S. Equities
International equities
International governmental bonds
Investment derivatives
Total

June3O,2011
Securities

LP LRP CIF Lending Other Total
$ 10,390 $ 244,425 $ 1,194,613 $ 4,118 $ 29,237 $ 1482,783

36,508 - 9,583 - 3,885 49,976
61,206 - 40,326 - - 101,532

-
- 1,037 - - 1,037

115,321 - 19,144 2,562 - 137,027
35,891 - 14,884 6,200 - 56,975

-
- 195,881 - - 195,881

-
- 10,526 - - 10,526

2,796 - 816 - - 3,612
- - -

- 9,052 9.052
S 262.112 $ 244.425 $ 1.486.810 S 12.880 S 42.174 S 2.048.401

June30, 2010
Securities

$
LRP CIF Lending Other

$ 232,706 $ 982,785 $ 9,653 $ 13,445 $

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, University
investment policy limits the average duration of the LP portfolio to three years and the LRP and CIF portfolios to six years. At
June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University was in compliance with its investment policy with regard to average duration. University
policy does not address average duration of investments by investment type.

Investment type
Investment pools

U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Government agencies

LP

10,052

37,662

124,796

U.S. Equities

Municipal bonds - - 388
Corporate bonds 106,854 - 18,662
Asset-backed securities 50,776 - 16,447

22,767

25,482

1,950
11,198

International equities - 2,388
International governmental bonds
Investment derivatives
Total

Total

1,248,641
1,203 61,632
2,123 152,401

- 388
- 127,466
- 78,421
- 147,008
- 2,388

147,008

2,635 - 796 - - 3,431
- - -

- (1,343) (1.343)
S 332.775 $ 232.706 S 1.216.723 $ 22.801 $ 15.428 $ 1.820.433
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

The maturities of fbced income investments as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as foflows:

The University invests in asset-backed securities such as mortgage pass-through securities issued by U.S. Government
agencies. These securities are based on cash flows from interest payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore, they are
sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a decline in interest rates.

Less than 1

June 30, 2011
Fixed Incorre lnvestnent Matunties

Mare than 10
Investrrent type

lnvestnnt pools

U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Governrrent agencies

M.inicipal bonds

Corporate bonds

International governnntaI bonds

Asset-backed securities
Total

lnvestnent type

tnvestrrent pools

U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Governnent agencies

I1Ainicipal bonds

Corporate bonds

International governnental bonds

Asset-backed securities
Total

year 1-5 years 6-10 years years Total
$ 31,602 $ 126,612 $ 170,103 $ 30,874 $ 359,191

3,802 42,717 464 2,993 49976
36,632 14933 4,735 45,232 101,532

-
• 248 789 1,037

20,961 103,995 9,061 3,010 137,027
1,013 2,029 438 132 3,612

10,809 13,546 17,004 15,616 56,975
S 104,819 $ 303,832 $ 202,053 $ 98,646 $ 709,350

June 30, 2010
Fixed Incorre Investrrent Maturities

Less than 1 Mare than 10

S S

year

$ 13,694

84,239

56,821

21,244
$ 175,998

S
1-5 years

123,096

55,050

28,633

60,806

3,028

37534
$ 308,147

6-10 years

$ 169,099

2,878

8,321

6897

122

3,330
$ 190,647

years

34,680

3,704

31,208

388

2,942

281

16,313
$ 89,516

Total

340.569

61,632

152,401

388

127,466

3,431

78,421
$ 764,308
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University is invested in six separate investment derivative instruments five of which are pay-
variable, receive-variable interest rate swaps and one of which is a pay-fixed, receive-variable rate swap.

2011 Counterpartyl
Notional fectrve Ternination Counterparty 2011 2010
Amount Rate Paid Rate Received Date Date Credit Rating Fair Value Falr Value

67% USD-LIBOR-BBA 67% USD-lS Swap Rate Deutsche Bank *

$ 277,560 one month ten year less .407% 8/1512009 2115/2034 AGIAa3 $ 16,481 $ 14,204

USD-LIBOR-BBA one USD4SD(. Swap Rate ten Deutsche Bank *

14,975 month year less .575% 5/26/2006 2/1512033 A&Aa3 1,359 1,192

Bank of New
SlFMD inv.ipaI 67% USD-IIBOR-BBA one York

74,290 Swap b,dex month plus .44% 5/1712010 8/15/2032 brVAaa (71) (826)

SlFMt Minkipal 67% USD-IIBOR-BBA one Deutsche Bank
49,525 Swap Index month plus .44% 5/1712010 811512032 AAa3 (47) (551)

JPtbrgan
67% USD-LIBOR-BBA Chase

71685 4.226% three month plus .63% 5/17/2007 2/15/2037 BankIAal (11,751) (14,815)

JPNorgan
SIFMA inicipal 67% USD-ISDA Swap Rate Chase

118,655 Swap Index ten year pIus .0063% 6/8/2007 2115/2037 Bank!Aal 3081 (547)-
$606,690 $ 9,052 $ (1,343)

* Novated from UBS AG to Deutsche Bank AG

During the year ended June 30, 2011, three of the University’s pay-vanable, receive-variable interest rate swaps were amended
per the terms listed in the table below and became effective subsequent to June 30, 2011. After the amendment period, these
interest rate swaps revert back to the original terms as outlined in the table above.

2011 ‘. Anendnent AnEndrrent Counterpartyl
Notional . Bfective Ternnation Counterparty
Amount Rate Paid Rate Received Date Date Credit Rating

Deutsche Bank
$ 277,560 0% 1.407% 8/15/2011 8I14/2014 AGIAa3

Deutsche Bank
14,975 0% 2.1725% 8115/2011 8I14I2014 AG!Aa3

.JP Norgan
SlFM Minicipal 67% USO-LIBOR-BBA one Chase

118.655 Swap Index month plus 1.8653% 811/2011 7/31/2014 BankIAal

Credit Risk: The University is exposed to credit risk on investment derivative instruments that are in asset positions. To minimize
its exposure to loss related to credit risk, it is the University’s policy to require counterparty coHateral posting provisions; refer to
Footnote 14 for thresholds and minimum transfers. The University has never failed to access collateral when required. The
aggregate fair value of investment derivative instruments in asset positions at June 30, 2011 was $20,921. This represents the
maximum loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counterparty failed to perform as contracted. This maximum
exposure is reduced by $30.1 12 of negative hedging and investment derivative fair values included in netting arrangements with
the counterparties and $750 of collateral posted with the University, resulting in no significant net exposure to credit risk with any
individual counterparty.
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As a means of managing credit risk on its fixed income investments, University investment policy limits investments at time of
purchase to the following ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations: LP portfolio — short-term Al/P 1
lang-term BBB; LRP portfolio — short-term A21P2, long-term B; CIF portfolio — short-term A21P2, long-term BB. Thereafter, the
minimum quality for separately managed funds in all three portfolios is limited toM. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University
was in compliance with its credit risk policy for each portfolio. University policy does not address credit risk by investment type.

The Standard & Poor’s credit ratings for fixed income investments at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows

Concentration of Credit Risk: As a means of managing the concentration of credit risk, University investment policy limits the
concentration of investments as follows: LP portfolio — No more than 15% of the portfolio’s market value may be invested in
dollar denominated foreign securities of developed countries (i.e., no emerging markets). No more than 10% of the portfolio’s
market value will be invested in (1) Rule 144A securities or (2) securities of any single issuer, except those which are obligations
of, or fully guaranteed as to both principal and interest by, the U.S. Government or its agencies. LRP portfolio — No more than
10% of the portfolio’s market value may be invested in securities below BBB. No more than 30% of the portfolio’s market value
may be invested in securities denominated in foreign currencies. No more than 10% of the portfolio’s market Value may be
invested in securities of any single issuer, except those which are obligations of, or fully guaranteed as to both principal and
interest by. the U.S. Government or its agencies. CIF portfolio — Investments are managed in accordance with asset allocation
guidelines and manager guidelines established at time of manager appointment and consist of U.S. equities, inflation hedge
funds, limited partnerships, absolute return funds, and fixed income assets.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, not more than 5% of the University’s total investments were invested in any one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
University will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. University investment policy does not limit the value of investments that may be held by an outside party. Of the
University’s investments $42.81 2 of the U.S. Treasury bonds, $101,532 of the U.S. Government agencies, $1,037 of the
Municipal bonds, $133,039 of the Corporate bonds, $3,612 of the International governmental bonds, $50,776 of the Asset-
backed securities, $181,034 of the U.S. Equities, $10,229 of the International equities, and $26,673 of the external investment
pools are held by the University’s counterparty, not in the name of the University. Consistent with the University’s securities
lending agreement, $12,880 was held by the counterparty that was acting as the University’s agent in securities lending
transactions.

Foreign Currency Risk: University investment policy limits foreign currency risk on its LRP portfolio to 30% of the portfolio’s
market value.

w
M
A
BBB
BB
Below BB
Not rated

Total

AAA

M
A
BBB

BB

As of June 30, 2011
U.S. U.S. International Asset-

Investment Treasury Government Municipal Corporate governmental backed
pools bonds agencies bonds bonds bonds securities Total

$ 4,117 $ - $ 17,774 $ - $ 14,568 $ 1013 $ 34,036 $ 71,508
- -

- 363 27,320 2,029 1,965 31,677
- -

- 674 60,787 176 1,870 63,507
- - -

- 27,838 394 26 28,258
- - -

- 2,042 - 40 2,082
- - - - -

- 4,045 4,045
355,074 49.976 83,758 - 4,472 - 14,993 ._508,273

5 359.191 $ 49.976 $ 101.532 $ 1.037 5 137.027 $ 3.612 S 58.975 S 709.350

As of June 30, 2010
U.S. U.S. International Asset

Investment Treasury Government Municipal Corporate governmental backed
pools bonds agencies bonds bonds bonds securities

$ $ $ $ $$ 9,653 - $ 42,920 - $ 5329 806
- -

- 266 20783 1293
- -

- 122 62,960 1,060
- - -

- 34,522 272
- - -

- 342 -

BelowBB - - - - - -

Not rated 330916 61,632 109.481 - 3530 -

Total S 340.569 S 61.632 S 152.401 5 388 S 127.466 S 3.431

Total

116008

23,889
70,435

34,841

57,300
1.547

6,293
47
54

4,846

8.334
$ 78.421

396
4,846

513.893
$ 764.308
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4. Foundation nvestments

investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are measured at fair
value in the Statements of Financial Position.

The Foundation has entered into various limited partnerships and managed accounts with investment managers. These
investments are secured by the underlying value of the securities composing the portfolios.

Foundation investments at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

2011 ‘ 2010
Cost Market Cost Market

Short-term investments $ 2,663 $ 2,663 $ 2,826 $ 2,826
Domestic equities 44,275 49,628 35,493 28939
Foreign equities 14,415 21,961 22,100 25,573
Otherequities 18,040 17,890 20,285 20785
Fixed income 78,131 81,497 66,657 69,649
Mutual funds — Equities 14,878 17,666 16,741 15,292
Mutual funds — Fixed 18,733 19,559 16,372 17,351
Limited partnerships 84529 100,682 84,940 97,245
Venture capital 36,918 43,560 34,667 33,257

$ 312,582 $ 355,106 $ 300,081 $ 310,917

Certain 2010 amounts have been restated to conform with 2011 presentation.

The cost and market values listed above include $1,566 and $2,587 for 2011 and 2010, respectively, of short-term investments
classified as cash equivalents on the Foundation’s Consolidating Statements of Financial Position.

Marketable securities: The fair values for marketable debt and equity securities are based on quoted market prices. Securities
traded on national securities exchanges are valued at the reported sales price on the last business day of the year. Investments
traded over the counter on the over-the-counter market and listed securities for which no sale was reported on that date are
valued at the average of the last reported bid and asked prices.

Limited partnership investments: The carrying amount reported in the Statements of Financial Position is stated at market value
or estimated market value.

Venture capital investments: The carrying amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position is stated at market value or
estimated market value. Management, external consultants, and the Board of Directors evaluate these investments for
impairments on a quarterly basis. As of June 30, 2011, the Foundation has an outstanding commitment to fund limited
partnership and venture capital investments in the amount of $26,602.

In determining the fair value of investments, the Foundation utilizes a fair value hierarchy that ranks the quality and reliability of
the information used to determine fair values and is based on certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
the asset, including assumptions about risk andlor the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques. The Foundation’s
total investment fair value measurement is categorized by the following valuation techniques: (1) Valuations from quoted prices in
active markets that are traded by dealers and brokers ($158,342); (2) Valuations obtained from third party pricing services for
identical or similar assets ($50,955); (3) Valuations from other techniques including option pricing models, discounted cash flow
models, and other similar techniques, and not based on market exchange transactions ($144,243).

Research park investment (not included in the above summary): The Foundation is also invested in a research park
development, which consists of land transferred at historical cost from the University plus costs incurred to develop the
infrastructure of the research park.
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5. Accounts and interest receivable

The composition of accounts and interest receivable at June 30, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

2011 2010
State appropriations $ 62,837 $ 58,155
Research and sponsored programs 83,231 64,074
Departmental activities 21,181 21,553
Interest receivable 1,454 2,108
Other 19,528 14,885

188,231 160,775
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 18,117 10,389
Net accounts and interest receivable $ 170,114 $ 150,386

6. Student loans receivable

Student loans receivable at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

Current
Description 2010 Distributed Collected 2011 Portion

Federal Family Education Loan Program $ 2,870 $ - $ 373 $ 2,497 $ 183
Perkins Federal Loan Program 37,580 4,316 4806 37,090 4,544
Other 10,444 4,234 4,498 10,160 4,022

50,894 $ 8,550 $ 9,677 49,767 8,749
Allowance for uncollectible loans (4,672) (4,889) (183)
Net student loan receivable $ 46,222 $ 44,878 $ 8,566

Current
Description 2009 Distributed Collected 2010 Portion

Federal Family Education Loan Program $ 3,065 $ - $ 195 $ 2,870 $ 207
Perkins Federal Loan Program 36,821 5,071 4,312 37,580 4,365
Other 10,348 4,657 4,561 10,444 4,833

50,234 $ 9,728 $ 9,068 50,894 9,405
Allowance for uncollectible loans (4,433) (4,672) (181)
Net student loan receivable $ 45,801 $ 46,222 $ 9,224

Principal repayment and interest rate terms of federal and University loans vary considerably. Campus-based federal loan
programs are funded principally with federal and institutional contributions to the University under the Perkins and various health
professions loan programs.

The University holds and services student loans related to the discontinued U.S. Department of Education Federal Family
Education Loan Program. As of June 30, 2011, the University held a non-revolving line of credit, used to facilitate the servicing of
the loans (see Footnote 13).

For the year ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the University distributed $347,760 and $322,087, respectively, for student loans
through the U.S. Department of Education WDliam D. Ford Direct Loan Program. These distributions and related funding sources
are not included as expenses and revenues in the accompanying financial statements.
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7. Pledges receivable

Payments on pledges receivable at June 30, 2011. expected to be received in the following fiscal years ended Juno 30, are
summarized below. The allowance for uncollectible pledges receivable is made based on prior collection experience and
management judgment. Gift pledges expected to be collected in the future years are reported at the net present value of the
related cash flows discounted at 5%.

2012 $ 26,884
2013 24,562
2014 5,241
2015 3,542
2016 2,181
2017 and beyond 5,537

Total discounted pledges receivable 67,947
Less: allowance for uncollectible pledges 6,945

Net pledges receivable, June 30, 2011 61,002
Less: current portion 24,109

Noncurrent portion $ 36,893

8. Investments In joint ventures

The University is a member of several incorporated nonprofit joint ventures, most of which are accounted for under the equity
method. The University and Sparrow Health System are members of Mid-Michigan MRI, Inc., which provides high technology
cross-sectional diagnostic imaging services. University Rehabilitation Alliance, Inc. has the University and Peckham Vocational
Industries of Lansing as members and is an enterprise for the treatment of persons with brain injury. Alliance Corporation is an
enterprise formed with Spectrum Health System to support and direct the collaboration of physicians and researchers to enhance
patient treatments and increase the investigation of leading-edge medical research. The University is a 50% member in each of
the foregoing nonprofit corporations. Additionally, the University is a one-third member in Radiation Oncology Alliance, a
nonprofit corporation formed with lngham Regional Medical Center and the University of Michigan to provide radiation oncology
services. Copies of financial statements for these entities can be obtained by a written request to: Office of the Controller,
Michigan State University, Room 305 John A. Hannah Administration Building, East Lansing, Michigan 48824-1046.
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9. Capital assets and collections

Capital asset and collection activity for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 follows:

Additions
2010 (Deductions) Disposals 2011

Non-depreciated capital assets:
Land $ 32,143 $ - $ - $ 32143
Construction in progress 162,670 42,358 - 205,028
Museum collections 8,805 66 - 8,871

Total non-depredated capital assets 203,618 42,424 - 246,042

Depreciated capital assets:
Buildings and site improvements 2,125,025 31,799 (869) 2,155,955
Software and other intangibles 87,264 87,264
Equipment and other 597,401 37,959 (9,524) 625,836

Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings and site improvements (849,582) (60,996) 866 (909,712)
Software and other intangibles - (17,453) - (17,453)
Equipment and other (454,931) (37,734) 8,098 (484,567)

Total depreciated capital assets 1,417,913 40,839 (1,429) 1,457,323
Total capital assets $ 1,621,531 $ 83,263 $ (1,429) $ 1,703,365

Additions
2009 (Deductions) Disposals 2010

Non-depredated capital assets:
Land $ 26,281 $ 5,862 $ - $ 32,143
Construction in progress 204,032 (41,362) - 162,670
Museum Collections 8,341 464 - 8,805

Total non-depreciated capital assets 238,654 (35,036) 203,618

Depreciated capital assets:

Buildings and site improvements 1,928,593 200,536 (4,104) 2,125,025
Equipment and other 561,812 47,573 (11,984) 597,401

Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings and site improvements (792,930) (60,756) 4,104 (849,582)
Equipment and other (428,013) (37,673) 10,755 (454,931)

Total depreciated capital assets 1,269,462 149,680 (1,229) 1,417,913
Total capital assets $ 1,508,116 $ 114,644 $ (1,229) $ 1,621,531

10. Contingencies and risk management

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters. To manage these risks, the University uses commercial insurance with various self-insured
retentions. Self-insured amounts are computed based on historical claim experience.

The University’s liability for various medical professional liability claims is funded based on actuarial valuations. The University
carries excess commercial medical professional liability insurance to manage the liability. The liability is reported at its present
value of $4,273 as of June 30, 2011. The discount rate used was 4%.

The University is also self-insured for various employee benefits which include health care and dental insurance, workers
compensation, and unemployment compensation. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Those losses include an estimate of claims that have
been incurred but not reported. The workers compensation liability, which will be settled by fixed payments over an extended
period of time, is reported at its present value of $3,729 as of June 30, 2011. The discount rate used was 6%.
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Changes in the total reported general, professional, and self-insured employee benefit liabilities during 2011, 2010, and 2009
were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 21,702 $ 24,253 $ 23,448
Claims incurred and changes in estimates 100,822 103,170 103,027
Claim payments (100,570) (105,721) (102,222)
Balance, end of year 21,954 21,702 24,253
Less: current portion 15,073 13,770 15,196
Noncurrent portion $ 6,881 $ 7,932 $ 9,057

For those risks that the University has purchased commercial insurance, settled claims have not exceeded the commercial
coverage in any of the past three years.

In the normal course of its activities, the University has been a party in various legal actions. Historically, the University has not
experienced significant losses from such actions. After taking into consideration legal counsel’s evaluation of pending actions,
the University is of the opinion that the outcome thereof will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

11. Retirement benefits

The University has a defined contribution base retirement program administered through TIAA-CREF, Fidelity Investments, and
The Vanguard Group for all qualified employees. All regular employees are eligible to participate based on the service
requirements specific to their employee group. Participants maintain individual contracts with the base retirement vendors and
are fully vested.

Participating employees contribute 5% of their base salary or wages and the University contributes 10% of the employee’s base
salary or wages subject to applicable Internal Revenue Service limits. Participants may elect to contribute additional amounts to
a supplemental program and/or a deferred compensation plan, within specified limits, which are not matched by University
contributions. Plan provisions and contribution requirements of plan members and the University are established and may be
amended in accordance with University podes, union contracts, or plan provisions. Contributions under the base program,
excluding the participants’ supplemental contributions, for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
University contributions $ 68,254 $ 65,396
Employee contributions 34,127 32,698

In addition, the University has a single-employer, defined benefit plan covering 644 employees hired prior to January 1, 1973.
The plan is closed to new entrants and monies have been internally reserved by the University to fully fund program costs. The
benefits are based on the employee’s compensation during the last three years of employment and/or years of service. There
were no required annual contributions and no pension costs for each of the three preceding years ended June 30, 2011.

12. Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description: The University provides retiree health and dental care benefits, including prescription drug coverage, to eligible
retired employees and qualified spouses/beneficiaries. This is a closed single employer defined benefit plan administered by the
University. Benefits are provided to eligible faculty, academic staff and support staff who meet normal retirement requirements
while still working for the University. Currently, the plan has approximately 17,300 members. The plan does not issue a separate
stand-alone financial statement. Effective for new employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, the University discontinued providing
retiree health and dental care benefits. ,,

Funding Policy: The University’s medical plans are self-funded and each plan’s premiums are updated annually based on actual
claims. The University contributes to the lowest cost health plan’s single rate cost for which retirees are eligible. No payment is
required by retirees who select the lowest cost health plan for coverage. In the event a retiree selects an alternative health plan,
the retiree is responsible for payment of the difference in premium costs. Retirees are responsible for various co-payments. The
University funds OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis, and there is no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the..
insurance premiums or claims are due for payment.
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Funding Progress: For the year ended June 30, 2011, the University has estimated the cost (annual expense> of providing
retiree health and dental care benefits through an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2010 and adjusted for 2010-11 health care
cost experience. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the valuation computes an annual required contribution, which
represents a lever of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. This valuation’s computed contribution and actual funding
are summarized as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Annual required contribution $ 66616 $ 66,970 $ 72,157
Interest on the prior years net OPEB obligation 8,976 6,167 3,031
Less adjustment to the annual required contribution (6,939) (4,654) (2,236)

Annual OPEB cost 68,653 68,483 72,952
Amounts contributed:

Payments of current premiums and claims (27,279) (28,354) (28142)
Advance funding - - -

Increase in net OPEB obligation 41,374 40,129 44,810
OPEB obligation - beginning of year 128,234 88,105 43,295

OPEB obligation - end of year $ 169,608 $ 128,234 $ 88,105

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the current and two preceding
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

Annual OPEB cost $ 68,653 $ 68,483 $ 72,952
Percentage contributed 39.7% 41.4% 38.6%
Net OPEB obligation $ 169,608 $ 128,234 $ 88,105

The funding progress of the plan as of the most recent and two preceding valuation dates are as follows:

Valuation as of January 1,
2011 2010 2009

Actuarial value of assets $ - $ - $ -

Actuarial accrued liability (fAL) 791,921 782,796 852,360
UnfindedML(UAAL) $ 791,921 $ 782,796 $ 852,360

Funded ratio 00% 0.0% 0.0%

Annual covered payroll (annual payroll
of active employees covered by the plan) $ 783,187 $ 753,757 $ 732254

UML as a percentage of covered payroll 101.1% 103.9% 116.4%

Actuarial methods and assumptions: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts are determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
include a 7.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term and
short-term investment returns on the University’s own assets to be used for funding the current liability, and an annual health
care cost trend rate of 5.0% which includes a 4.0% inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 years as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis, with 26 years remaining.
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13. Long term debt and other obligations

Long term debt and other obligations for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

General Revenue Bonds:

Series 2010A

Series 2010C

Series 2007A

Series 2007B

Series 2005

Series 2003A

Series 2003C

Series 2002A

Series 2002B

Series 2000A

Series 1998A-2

General Revenue Con’rrarcial Paper:

Series A tax-exenpt

Series B taxable

Series C tax-exerrpt

Federal student loan deposits

Line of credit

Lease obligations and other

General Revenue Bonds:

Series 201 CA

Series 201CC

Series 2007A

Series 2007B

Series 2005

Series 2003A

Series 2003B

Series 2003C

Series 2002A

Series 2002B

Series 2000A

Series I 998A-2

Federal student loan deposits

Line of credit

Lease obligations and other

$ 205,000 $ - $
289,230 -

27,955 -

25,000 -

54,140 -

48,205 -

9,850 -

1,490 -

5,710 -

78,700 -

2,815 -

748,095 -

34,929

20,000

4,071

___________

59,000

36,838

3,410

3,863

___________

$ 851,206

$

30,820

25,000

80,845

73,465

20,835

10,070

43,955

6,945

100,050

51,935

__________

443,920

current

2011 Partion

$ 205,000

284,155

24,970

25,000

54,140

48,205

9,620

33880

47,475

81,355

37,298

2,428

4,695

$ 854,006

$ 205,000

289,230

27,955

25,000

54,140

48,205

9,850
1,490

5,710

78,700

2,815

748,095

34,929

20,000

4,071

59,000

36,838

3,410

3,863

$ 851,206

33,880

47,475

81355

(518)

$ 95,702

current

Partlon

5,075

2,985

230

1,490

355

1,505

2,815

14,455

34,929

20,000

4,071

59,000

(832)

$ 72,623

2010 Borrowed Retired

$
11,530

3,090

245

14,865

5,075

2,985

230

1,490

5,710

1,560

2,815

19,865

34,929

8,525

43,454

77,140

728,230

13,880

51,929

65,809

460

982

- (832)

$ 66,269 $ 63,469

2009 Borrowed Retired 2010

$$205,000 $ -

289,230 -

- 2865

- 26,705

- 25,260

- 20,835

- 220

- 42,465

1,235

21,350

__________

49,120

190,055
General Revenue Corrnwcial Paper:

Series A tax-exenpt

Series B taxable

Series C tax-exerrpt

494,230

60,000 91,000

31,500 -

- 4,071

91,500 95,071

36,457 381

____________

2,621

$ 592,303

116,071

11,500

127,571

432

2,936

$ 320,994

3,842

4,178

$ 579,897
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All bonds are secured by General Revenues and certain variable rate issues bear interest based on weekly or quarterly rates
determined by the trustee or remarketing agent and are amortized through mandatory redemptions as follows:

With the exception of the Series 2007B bonds, the foregoing bonds may be converted to a permanent fixed rate provided certain
conditions are met

The Series 2010A bonds bear interest at 6.17% and are subject to mandatory redemption from fiscal 2044 through 2050. In
accordance with the Build America Bonds program, the University will receive semi-annual federal credit payments equal to
35.00% of actual interest expense incurred on the outstanding principal balance of the bonds.

The Series 201 OC bonds bear interest at fixed rates from 3.00% to 5.13% and mature either serially through fiscal 2029 or are
subject to mandatory redemption from 2030 through 2044.

The Series 2007A bonds bear interest at rates of 4.00% and 5.00% and mature serially through fiscal 2019.

The University utilizes variable-rate commercial paper to provide interim financing. The Board has authorized the issuance of up
to $200,000 in commercial paper secured by General Revenues and allows for tax-exempt and taxable issuances. Outstanding
commercial paper debt is converted to long-term financing, as appropriate, within the normal course of business. Outstanding
tax-exempt balances bear interest at rates from 0.14% to 0.31% and taxable balances bear interest at rates from 0.23% to
0.28%, with principal and accrued interest payments due within a maximum of 270 days from the date of issuance

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the University used $5,355 par value of Commercial Paper Series B to refund $5,355 par
value of Series 20028 bonds.

Hedging derivative instrument payments and hedged debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2011, scheduled fiscal year maturities of
bends payable and related interest expense are as follows. These amounts assume that current interest rates on variable-rate
bonds and the current reference rates of hedging derivative instruments will remain the same for their term. As these rates vary,
interest payments on variable-rate bonds and net receipts/payments on the hedging derivative instruments will vary. See
Footnote 14 for information on derivative instruments.

Interest expense was $38,878 (net of $2,291 capitalized interest) and $19,467 (net of $3,226 capitalized interest) for 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Federal student loan deposits represent funds from the federal government related to various federal student loan programs.

At June 30, 2011, the University owed $2,428 on a $4,100 non-revolving line of credit related to the University’s servicing of
unsold graduate and professional degree student loans under the Federal Family Education Loan Program (see Footnote 6).
Subsequent to year end, the University amended the non-revoMng line of credit agreement to bear Interest equal to the British
Bankers Association (BBA) London lnterbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) Daily Floating Rate plus 1.00%. Payments of accrued
interest are due monthly, with all unpaid accrued interest and principal due October 2013.

• Series 20078:
• Series 2005:
• Series 2003A:
• Series 2003C:
• Series 2000A:

from fiscal 2020 through 2037
from 2021 through 2034
from 2021 through 2033
through 2033
from 2022 through 2031

Fiscal Year Fixed-Rate Bonds Variable-Rate Bonds Hedging
Biding June 30, Rincipal Interest friricipal Interest Derivatives, Net

2012 $ 14,620 $ 27255 $ 245 $ 317 $ 7,882
2013 15,015 26,670 255 317 7,853
2014 15,595 25914 270 316 7,823
2015 16,235 25,116 285 315 7,792
2016 16,915 24,285 300
2017-2021 76,255 108902 11,715
2022-2026 24,975 96,820 75,705 1096
2027-2031 7,105 94,072 92,065 476
2032-2036 23,760 91,193 32,265 150
2037-2041 47,330 82,796 1,000 5 -

2042-2046 122,020 62,847 - - -

2047-2051 134,300 18,085 - - -

Total $ 514,125 $ 683,955 $ 214,105 $ 4,845 $ 119,782

Total

$ 50,319
50,110
49,918

49,743
315

1,538
7,760

38,046
49,575

29,129
236,456

227,725
12,155

1,342
205,873
148,710

131,131

184,867

152,385
_$_ 1,536,812
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14. DerivatIve instruments

Hedging derivatives:
Cash flow hedges:
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps

lnvestrrent derivatives:

Pay-variable interest rate swaps
Pay-fixed siterest rate swaps

Total nvestnnt derivatives

Hedging derivatives:
Cash flow hedges:
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps

bivesbent derivatives:
Pay-variable interest rate sw aps
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps

Total investnnt derivatives

Net investrrEnt incone (loss)
Net Investnent incon (loss)

Fair Value: The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero-coupon method. This method calculates the
future net settlement payments required by the swaps, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve
correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. The payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield
curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the dates of each future net settlement on the swaps.

Objective: The University is party to eight separate derivative instruments which are pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate
swaps that hedge the changes in cash flows on various variable-rate debt series. In order to protect against the potential of
rising interest rates, the University entered into these derivative instruments at a cost less than what the University would have
paid to issue fixed-rate debt. In order to benefit from both expected changes in the relationship of short and long-temi interest
rates and the relationships between the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index and both the ten-year USD-ISDA Index and the one-month
USD-LIBOR-BBA Index, the University also entered into five separate derivative instruments which are pay-variable, receive-
variable interest rate swaps which relate to various debt series. See Footnote 3 for more information on investment derivative
instruments.

Terms, Fair Values, and Credit Risk: The following table displays the terms and fair values of the University’s hedging derivative
instruments outstanding at June 30, 2011 and 2010, along with the notional amounts and credit rating of the associated

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Michigan State University

Lease obligations and other includes lease obligations of $2,066 ($249 current) and deferred bond premium of $20,523 ($366
current), net of deferred debt refunding costs of $17,894 ($1,134 current). Deferred amounts will be amortized over the
applicable bond issue life.

Accrued personnel costs include vacation and sicI leave days earned but unused, including the University’s share of payroll
taxes, valued at the current rate of pay. Changes in the balances of accrued personnel costs during 2011 and 2010 were as
follows:

2011 2010

Balance, beginning of year $ 104,064 $ 95,013
Mditions 4,465 10,556
Reductions (27,336) (1,505)
Balance end of year 81 193 104 064
Less: current portion 49,256 73,223
Noncurrent portion $ 31,937 $ 30,841

The fair value and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2011 and 2010, classified by type, and the
changes in fair value of such derivative instruments are as follows:

,June3O,2011
changes in Fair Value Fair Value Notional

Classification Arrount Classiflcation Arrount Anount

Deferred charges $ 7,115 Debt $ (35,770) $ 210,855

Net mvestrrent ncorre (loss) $ 7,331 hvestnent $ 20,803 $ 535,005
Net,nvestrrentincon’e(Ioss) 3,064 hvestrrent (11,751) 71,685

$ 10,395 $ 9,052 $ 606,690

June30, 2010
Changes in Fair Value Fair Value Notional

Classification Anount Classification Anount Anount

Deferred charges $ 17,049 Debt

$ 4,523 hwestnent
(14,815) kivestrrent

$ (10,292)

$ (42,865) $ 212,945

$ 13,472
(14,815)

$ (1,343)

$ 549,460
71,685

$ 621,145
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counterparty as of June 30, 2011. As disclosed in Footnote 13, the University retired $5,355 of its Series 2002B debt with
proceeds from its Commercial Paper (CP) Series B. The related hedging derivative instruments were assigned to the portion of
the University’s CP Series B that was used to retire the 2002B debt.

Cash Flow 2011 Counterpartyl
Hedge for Netional fective Terrnnation Counterparty 2011 2010

Type Debt Series Anount Dete Debt Rate Paid Rate Raceived Q’edit Rating FaW Value Far Vakie

Pay-fixed 67% USD
interest rate LIBOR-BBA Deutsche Bank
swap 2000A 71.535 111312008 8/15/2029 4.074% one rronth AG/Aa3 (14,465) (16,994)

Pay-fbced USD.LIBOR
interest rate BBA one Deutsche Bank
swap CPSeries B 3,315 10/1712002 8/15/2018 4.330% rmnth AG/Aa3 (339) (390)

Pay-fbced USD-UBOR
interest rate BBA one Deutsche Bank
swap CPSeries B 2,040 10/17/2002 8/15/2022 5.280% ryonth AG/Aa3 (404) (481)

Pay-f txed 67% IJSD
interest rate LIBOR-BBA Barclays Bank
swap 2003A 48,205 11/3/2008 2/15/2033 3.615% onerronth FWJAa3 (7,225) (8,881)

Pay-fixed IJSD-LIBOR
interest rate BBA one Barclays Bank
swap 2003C 9,620 11/3)2008 2/15/2033 5.330% rronth PLC/Aa3 (1,913) (2,326)

Pay-fIxed 67% USD
interest rate LIBOR-BBA Barclays Bank
swap 2005 54,140 11/3/2008 2115/2034 3.647% one nnth FIC!Aa3 (8,318) (10,192)

67% USD
Pay-f ixed L1BOR-BBA P r/brgan
interest rate 2007B & CP three rronth Chase
swap Series C 22,000 5/17/2007 2/15/2028 4.139% plus .58% Banlc/Aal (3,106) (3,641)

$ 210,855 $ (35,770) $ (42,885)

Credit Risk: The University is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments that are in asset positions. The aggregate
fair value of hedging derivative instruments in asset positions at June 30, 2011 was zero and the University was not exposed to
credit risk related to these swaps. Refer to Footnote 3 for information on credit risk of investment derivative instruments.

To mitigate credit risk, the University executes interest rate swaps with various counterparties and it is the University’s policy to
require collateralization. The following table demonstrates the thresholds and minimum transfers for collateralization:

JP rgan Chase Bank Bank of New York
Deutsche Bank AG l%LA. Barcbys Bank PLC

iumim Mniniim Mninim Mnirum
Credit Rating Threshold Transfer Threshold Transfer Threshold Transfer Threshold Transfer

Aa&AAA $ 40,000 $ 1,000 $ 40,000 $ 1,000 $ 40,000 $ 1,000 $ 40,000 $ 1,000

Aa3/AA- to
Aal/AA+ 6,000 1,000 20,000 1,000 6,000* 1,000 6,000 1,000

A3/A- to
A1/A÷ 1,500 500 5,000 500 1,500 500 1,500 500

Baal/BBB+ 500 250 500 250 500 250 500 250

Baa2/BBB - 250 - 250

Below
Baa2/BBB - 250 - 250

Threshokl for the University is $20,000
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Interest rate risk: The University is not exposed to interest rate risk on its derivative instruments.

Basis Risk: The University is exposed to basis risk on its pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap hedging derivative
instruments because the variable-rate payments received by the University on these hedging derivative instrumentsare based on
a rate or index other than interest rates the University pays on its variable-rate debt, which bear interest based on weekly or
quarterly rates determined by the trustee or remarketing agent. These pay-fixed, receive-variable swaps expose the University to
basis risk should the rates resulting from the 67% of USD-UBOR-BBA swaps not equal the rate the University pays on the
2000A, 2003A, 2005, 2007B, and CP Series C debt, and should the rates resulting from the USD-LIBOR-BBA swaps not equal
the rate the University pays on the 2003C and CP Series B debt.

Termination Risk: The University or any of the involved counterparties may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party
fails to perform under the terms of the contract. If at the time of termination, a hedging derivative instrument is in a liability
position, the University would be liable to the appropriate counterparty for a payment equal to the liability, subject to any netting
arrangement.

Rollover Risk: The University is not exposed to rollover risk on its derivative instruments.

Contingencies: All of the University’s derivative instruments include provisions that require the University to post collateral, at
certain thresholds depending on the University’s credit rating. See the table under “Credit Risk” for thresholds and minimum
transfers for collateralization. As of June 30, 2011, the University’s credit ratings were Aal as assigned by Moody’s and AA as
assigned by Standard & Poor’s. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with these collateral posting provisions at
June 30, 2011 was $26,718. The University had $12,323 in collateral posted to its counterparties and held $750 in collateral
posted by its counterparties.

15. Net assets

Restricted and unrestricted net assets for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Restricted - nonexpendable:

Permanent endowments $ 352,696 $ 447,289

Restricted - expendable:

Gifts, endowment income and sponsored programs $ 351,085 $ 185,981
Quasi and term endowments 166,101 136,069
Capital projects 65,539 65,190
Student loans 8,166 8,128

Total Restricted - expendable $ 590,891 $ 395,368
Total Restricted Net Assets $ 943,587 $ 842,657

Unrestricted:
Designated/Committed $ 779,390 $ 618,085
Uncommitted 10,096 20,145

Total Unrestricted Net Assets $ 789,486 $ 638,230

Restricted — Net assets are restricted when they are subject to externally imposed constraints.

Unrestricted — Unrestricted net assets are not subject to externally imposed constraints. However, these net assets are subject
to internal designations. Unrestricted net assets include amounts designated for specific purposes by action of the Board or
management or may otheiwise be subject to pending contractual commitments with external parties. Substantially all
unrestricted net assets are internally designated for programmatic initiatives or capital asset renewals.

16. Grants and contracts

The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal, state, and local agenclos to fund research and other activities.
Revenues from government grants and contracts are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met. The University
records indirect costs related to such grants and contracts at predetermined rates that are negotiated with the University’s federal
cognizant agency. Both direct and indirect costs ctiarged to the grants or contracts are subject to audit and approval by the
granting agencies. University management believes adjustments of costs, if any, resulting from such examination by the granting
agency would not be material.
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17. CommItments

At June 30, 2011, the University had initiated plans and incurred certain contractual commitments related to the construction or
capital improvement of various facilities. The costs to complete the projects are estimated to be $167,847 and are to be funded
from debt proceeds, other University funds, and private gifts. Certain University facilities have been, or are scheduled to be,
financed in whole or in part by SBA bond issues secured by a pledge of rentals to be received from the State of Michigan
pursuant to lease agreements between the SBA, the State of Michigan, and the University. During the lease terms, the SBA will
hold title to the respective buildings, the State of Michigan will make all lease payments to the SBA, and the University will pay
certain operating and maintenance costs. The SBA will be obligated to sell each building to the University for one dollar, after full
payment of all rentals due under the related lease.

At June 30, 2011, the University had entered into various limited partnerships with investment managers of oil and gas, real
estate, venture capital, private equity, and restructuring funds. As of June 30, 2011, $159,724 of the initial $419,230 investment
commitment remains outstanding.

18. New accounting pronouncements

The University will be required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 60, AccountIng and Financial Reporting for
Service Concession Arrangements (SCA5), effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The University will be required to
address financial reporting related to service concession agreements which are a type of public-private or public-public
partnership. The University has not yet determined the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

The University will be required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus,
effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The University wifl be required to address modifications to certain
requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. The University has not yet determined the full
impact of this standard on its financial statements.

The University will be required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pro-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements effective with the fiscal year
ending June 30. 2013. The University will be required to address certain FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions,
and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA Committee on Accounting Procedure that this standard incorporates into GASB
literature. The University has not yet determined the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

The University will be required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. This
Statement defines deferred outflows and inflows of resources as elements of consuming or acquiring net assets by the University
that is applicable to a future reporting period. The standard also incorporates deferred outflows or inflows of resources into the
definition of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net
assets. The University has not yet determined the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

The University will be required to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No, 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of
Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53, effective with the fiscal year ending June
30, 2012. The requirements of this Statement enhance comparability and improve financial reporting by clarifying the
circumstances in which hedge accounting should continue when a swap counterparty, or a swap counterparty’s credit support
provider, is replaced. The University has not yet determined the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

‘ ‘4
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Financial report prepared under the direction of Fred L. Poston, Vice President for
Finance and Operations and Treasurer; David B. Brower, Assistant Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Controller; Mark P. Haas, Assistant Vice President for
Business and Chief Financial Officer; Glen J. Klein, Director of Investments and

Financial Management; Gregory J. Deppong, ChiefAccountant; and John L. Thelen,
Manager of Financial and Cost Analysis.

Michigan State University is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
The Michigan State University IDEA is Institutional Diversity; Excellence In Action
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Michigan State University

We have audited the basic financial statements of Michigan State University as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2011. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits, we considered Michigan State University’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Michigan State University’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Michigan State University’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the University’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Michigan State University’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Praxity’
UEMBP’•

39 LoeA. ALLlNCt Ot
$DEPENUtWT FIM5



To the Board of Trustees
Michigan State University

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the finance and audit committee, the board of
trustees, and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

PLLC
Kalamazoo, Michigan
October 6, 2011

40





Michigan State University Libraries Page 1 of 1

MICHIGAN STATE
‘1 I V I R S I I

Libraries Home I Hours I Account Support MSU Libraries

Library Site Search

Search

Quick Links

Articles

Search Branch Libraries

E-Resources

Guides and Tutorials

InterLibrary Services

Reserve a Tech Lab

Seminars & Workshops

Your Library Account

Unique @ MSU Libraries

American Radicalism Collection I

Espresso Book Machine

View All

What’s New

Announcements

New Books, etc.

New E-Resources

News & Features

Trial E-Resources

Library Catalog

Keyword-classic

Advanced Catalog Search

Basic Search for Articles

ProQuest

Browse Indexes by Subject

Please select a subject GOl

alteniañve pibUs1iing

I5Iint onfli
faculty dbcusslca

self pithbh

View Main Library Features View All Features

Main Librdr

New Faculty Discussion Group
Cane Study on Self-PublicJIin9 in the Humanities
Wednesday Novmnber 28, 2012

Gicinq to the
Librari&

httnl/www lihmsii eAii/ 11 icci”ni’)



Electronic Resources - Michigan State University Libraries

MICIIIC,AN STATE
I V [ C S I T b

?

Page 1 of 1

Libraries Home I Hours I Account Support MSU Libraries

Library site search

j Search

Type of
Resources

E-Resources:

Indexes

Newspapers

Texts & Links

Primary
Sources

Data &
Statistics

Media

E-Journal Titles

Research Guides

New Resources

Trial E-Resources

Find Electronic Journals

Find e-journals by title or ISSN

Title begins with

Search

V

Electronic Journals :IM000TANT 1Nc)

(A-Z Title List and browse by subject)

Find Other E-Resources
including Indexes

Find Other E-Resources

Go:

Browse Other E-Resources by subject

Please select a subject

Research Help

V GO

• Research Guides

• “HOW DO I...?” - FAQ5 about using electronic
resources

• How to choose the best indexes/databases

• Online Reference Tools (dictionaries, atlases,
etc.)

• Keeping Up with the Literature

• EndNote - training, files and information

Commonly Used E-Resources

• (aboot) Academic OneFile

• (about) Ebrary ebooks

• (about) EBSCOho5t eBook Collection (formerly
netLibrary)

• (about) FDsys

• (about) Gale PowerSearch

• (about) Gale Virtual Reference Library

• (about) JSTOR

• (about) LexisNexis Academic

• (about) Opposing Viewpoints in Context

• (about) Periodicals Archive Online

• labout) Project Muse

(about) ProQuest (All databases)

• (about) PubMed

• L. (about) Reference Universe

• (about) SciFinder

• (about) Web of Science (including Book Citation
Index)

• (about) Wor(dCat (OCLC)

License Restrictions

Terms of Use for E-Journals and other Electronic
Resources

Commercial Use Restrictions

1,fti,11a’r 11i mcii 11 II’A1’



Michigan State University Libraries - Features Page 1 of 3

Libraries Home I Hours I Account Support MSU Libraries

Lubrary Site Search

Main Library

Espresso Book Machine

Digital & Mull ii(L Cciilr

Africana

Diitilal & lull iiiilii Center

Sunday School Books

H.ilh Sciences Digital LibrarV

NIH Public Access Policy Information

Digital & 11 11111 urn a Center

Fencing

llCI1lGnN STkTE
V [ R S I T S

Features

-7-

Mailt Linuas

Math Library Endowments

National
Institutes
of Health

- en Bnirunesc and Engineering libraries

— .

Safari Books Online

________

- Business and Tech

.jc

hUn ://wwwiih.msu.edu!features/ 1 1/1/7n17



Michigan State University Libraries - Features Page 2 of 3

AiJIHF’TiCAii-i)

US GOVErNML\t
‘1ORM,T IQSr

GPO

I —

Engineering Library

ASIM Standards Online

Government Documents

LexisNexis Statistical

r

EEE

__

:r/

Engineering Library

Engineering Library Services:

Laptops Available for Checkout

Al] Libraries

Reaxys Training Online

Government Documents

FDsys

L:iJr:ui & Multimedia Center

Janet A. Ginsburg

Chicago Tribune Collection

Main Library

New Faculty Discussion Group:
Print on Demand (POD) Self Publishing and

Alternative Publishing Models

tlaifl Library

_______

LexisNexis Congressional Hearings

Digital Collection (1824-2003)

‘lain Library

Colloquia Series
Dying to Be Heard
November 8, 7:00 pm

Main Library

New Faculty Discussion Group
Cane Study err S&f-Publislting in the Humanibes
Wednesday, Novenber 28, 2012

lairr Library

Hail to the Chief: Celebrating the

Presidents of the U.S.A

alterna publishing

pint on deman
faculty discusuloB

sell pubhishiti

aitema publishing
print on dentarn

fydlacusslea
self pttblishnt

4ZZVdIine
Main Library

MSU Stucent
“ Cartoonist Anthology

--

:uf
I

Map Library

Michigan’s Legal Boundaries

hftn//www lj) mii mlii/fpcitiirec/ 11 ii;i’ni’



Michigan State University Libraries - Features Page 3 of3

httn/Iwww Jib msu eAii/featiirec/ 11 itci’ni2



Continuing Education Resources - College of Nursing - Michigan State University Page 1 of 1

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY College of Nursing search...

Certificate Courses

tLron Continuing Education Resources
RN Refresher . . .

Home > Continuing Education > Continuing Education Resources

Conferences, Classes and
Seminars

• State of Michigan Continuing Education Requirements
Pain

Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs explanation of continuing educstion requirements with respect to the
Case Management

Public Health Code and nursing reliscensure.
2CC Interpretation and
Treatment

Rural Health Grand These websites offer a wide variety of continuing education activities for nurses:
Rounds

College of Nursing Grand • Ce-WEB
Rounds

The nurse’s one-stop resource for CE on the Web. Registration is required.
Geriatric Grand Rounds

• MedWay

Online Educational Offerings Website has a list of articles online. Can print out the courses and take the tests at a later time.
Introduction to Reflexology • Medscape
Complementary Therapies Free activities for nurses covering a wide range of topics.in Pain Management

• Nurse CEU.com
Earty and Penodic
Screening Diagnosis and Nursing Continuing Education (CEU’s) Site with categories CEU courses by practice focus, links to all nursing continuing
Treatment

education (CEU’s and contact hours) modules offered on the Internet.
Signing Online

• NURSEweek

Continuing Education Continuing Education Online magazine offers continuing education articles, which you can read, print or download.
Resources

• Nursing World

Meet the Staff Offers a list of continuing education topics that are found in AJN and other journals.

• PainEDU

PainEDU.com is a website for healthcare professionals and is focused on improving pain management through education.

• RNWeb

RN Web CE Center Articles are worth two hours of ANNMCN approved CE credit.

MICHIGAN STATE
UNIVERSITY

02011 Michigsn state uovorody Board of Truoteeo, esot Lanoiog, MI d552d
Msu a as sffirmatioe-actios, eqaai-opportanity employer.
Acceooibility i contact Uo

Give to Nursing Employment

httn//niivch,a mcii 11 /iflflfl



MICHIGAN STATE
U N I V E R S I T Y

August 16, 2011

MEMORANDUM

To: University Committee on Curriculum

Fr: Linda 0. Stanford, Associate Provost for Academic Services

Re: University Committee on Curriculum — Role and Responsibility

Role.
The role of the University Committee on Curriculum (UCC) is to fulfill the responsibility
delegated to the faculty to shape the curriculum. The curriculum refers to programs of
study, those requirements and courses which contribute to the completion of all or some
requirements that lead to the awarding of a credential known as a degree or certificate.

The determination to offer a credential is a responsibility delegated to the provost who,
as the chief academic officer of the university, is responsible for the administrative
support essential to assure the sustained offering of degrees and certificates.

Responsibility.

Bylaws for Academic Governance.

4 5 3 The University Committee on Curnculum shall exercise the
faculty s delegated authority to review and approve or reject all
changes in undergraduate curncula and degree requirements
recommended by the University Committee on Undergraduate

University Studies, and to review and approve or reject changes
Curriculum and in graduate and graduate-professional curricula and degree

Catalog requirements recommended by the University Committee on
Graduate Studies. The University Committee on Curriculum shall

176 Administration Bldg. not reject a recommendation from either the University Committee
East Lansing, MI on Undergraduate Studies or the University Committee on

48824-1046 Graduate Studies without providing a rationale for the rejection
517-355-8420 and consulting with the appropriate committee. In addition, the

Fax: 517-353-1935 University Committee on Curriculum shall exercise the faculty’s
delegated authority to review and approve or reject all
undergraduate and graduate courses proposed by academic units.

4.5.4. The University Committee on Curriculum shall advise the Provost
on criteria for the establishment and deletion of courses and
curricula.

4.5.5. The University Committee on Curriculum shall coordinate its
activities with those of other committees, as appropriate.

MSU is an affirmative-action,
equal-opportunity employer.



The University Committee on Curriculum reviews all requests for new or changed
undergraduate, graduate and graduate-professional program curricula and courses.

a. The UCC reviews each program to determine that the requested change:
• fulfills University requirements (e.g.: 120 credits for a bachelor’s degree;

30 credits for a master’s degree).
• is a cohesive, stand-alone, high-quality program.
• includes the correct credit count for individual sections of the degree

program.
• has a realistic choice of courses from which to select.
• is clearly stated so a student can understand readily.
• avoids hidden prerequisite courses.
• allows room for electives (particularly for undergraduate programs).
• avoids unnecessary duplication of programs.
• has the appropriate sign-offs and required approvals from other units.

b. The UCC reviews the responses from the University Committee on
Undergraduate Studies, the University Committee on Graduate Studies, and the
Teacher Education Council before it approves or does not approve a curricular
request.

c. The UCC reviews all course requests in terms of the:
• degree program to which they relate.
• appropriateness of the course number (e.g.: 100-299; 300-499; 500-

699; 800-999; 900-999) in relation to the course content.
• attributes of the course description and its ability to reflect course

content accurately.
• relationship between course content and the long title (which appears in

the Course Descriptions catalog) and the short title (which appears on
the transcript).

• appropriateness for listing:
• as Remedial-Developmental-Preparatory (RDP).
• with an Integrative Studies attribute.
• as a Tier I or a Tier II writing course.
• necessary preparatory requirements:
• prerequisite.
• recommended background.
• co-requisite.
• restrictions.
• semester alias.
• relationship to other courses.
• appropriate sign-offs and requested approvals from other units.

d. The UCC responsibility for the review of all curricular requests provides the
committee with a unique vantage point from which to observe and consider
curricular trends and make recommendations for policy changes by sending
proposals to the University Committee on Undergraduate Studies, the
University Committee on Graduate Studies, and/or the Teacher Education
Council for action.
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Relationship to Other University Standing Committees.
UCC review and approval of any request for a new or changed undergraduate,
graduate, or graduate-professional curriculum occurs in accordance with a schedule
coordinated to provide the University Committee on Undergraduate Studies, the
University Committee on Graduate Studies, and/or the Teacher Education Council the
opportunity to review those aspects of program requests that are within their respective
purview for action. Course requests are not sent to these committees.

University Committee on Undergraduate Studies (UCUS) makes recommendations
regarding undergraduate program requests.

University Committee on Graduate Studies (UCGS) makes recommendations
regarding graduate program requests.

UCUS and UCGS recommendations involve consideration of the policy
implications for the overall quality of academic programs including the
implementation of an admission or grade-point requirement, a moratorium
(suspension of admission), or a discontinuation. Among the Issues they may
consider are: faculty capacity, critical mass of students, completion rates,
placement of graduates, program assessment, intellectual rigor, research
opportunities and the scope and kind of support provided for students.

Teacher Education Council (TEC) reviews programs that lead to teacher certification
to determine if, in addition to the changes the UCC will approve, teacher certification
policy and requirements are met.

Approval of Curriculum.
After Faculty Senate approves the “Report of the UCC to the Faculty Senate” at the
monthly Faculty Senate meeting, University Curriculum and Catalog staff update the
Academic Programs catalog within the next one to three days. This occurs seven times
a year.

Additional Information.
The following sites provide extensive information regarding policies, procedures and the
curriculum.

• Academic Programs,
• Course Descriptions, http://www.regrnsuedu/CoursesSsearch.as
• University Committee on Curriculum: tIIwwwre rnsu.edu/ucciucco
• Academic Programs: Guidelines and Procedures for Requests:

• Academic Governance,

C: Kim A. Wilcox, Provost
Michele Halloran, Chairperson, University Committee on Curriculum
Douglas Estry, Associate Provost for Undergraduate Education

and Dean of Undergraduate Studies
Karen Klomparens, Associate Provost for Graduate Education

and Dean of the Graduate School
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Michigan State University - Office of the Registrar

Student Consumer Information

The Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008 (HEOA) requires that postsecondary institutions participating in federal student aid
programs make certain disclosures to students. The following information is disclosed to you as a student at Michigan State University
(MSU) in compliance with federal law. For additional information, including requesting a paper copy of any materials, please call the
appropriate office or visit the indicated websites.

Academic Programs and Accreditations

Information concerning MSUs current educational programs and course descriptions is available at
htto://www.reg.msu.edu/AcademicPrograms. This includes information about instructional, laboratory, and other physical
facilities that relate to the academic programs, as well as faculty and other instructional personnel. Plans for reviewing
academic functions of a department, school, or interdisciplinary program to include MSU accountability indicators are available
at http://www.esp.msu.edu/APR.asp. Academic Progra ms, the University catalog,
(http://www.reo.msu.edu/AcademicPrograms) provides information related to institutional/program accreditations and
approvals (enter ‘accreditation in the search box), as well as transferring courses and credits to MSU (enter “transfer’ in the
search box). University-approved articulation and consortium agreements are available for reference at
(http://www.reg.msu.edu/UCC/consortium.asp). The policies and procedures related to academic governance may be
accessed at http :I/www. rep. msu.edu/UCC/UCC.asp.

Alcohol and Other Drug Policy

The MSU Alcohol and Other Drug Policy can be accessed at
http://www.hr.msu.edu/documents/supportstaffpolproc/drug alcohol.htm. The Annual Security Report
(http://poIice.msu.edu/clervreport.asp) provides information about alcohol and other drug health risks, drug alcohol laws and
penalties, and campus alcohol and other drug education and counseling resources. Additional information specifically
addressing student conduct related to alcohol and other drugs can be found in Spartan Life
(htto://splife.studentlife.msu.edu/).

Campus Security Policies, Crime Statistics and Crime Log

Information regarding public safety at MSU is provided in the Annual Security Report (http://www.police.msu.edu/).The
Security Report includes crime statistics for the previous three years concerning certain crimes reported to have occurred on
campus; in certain off-campus buildings or property owned or controlled by MSU; and on public property within, or
immediately adjacent to and accessible from, the campus. The Security Report also includes information about police and
public safety resources, reporting crimes, coordination between law enforcement agencies, fire and medical emergencies,
crime prevention, victim support services, the law and MSU policies, campus facilities, residence hall security, timely warning
policy statement, the MSU Policy on Sexual Harassment, and the MSU Alcohol and Other Drug Policy. Additional information
regarding emergency action plans is available at http://www.police.msu.edu/actionplans.aso. Pursuant to the Campus Sex
Crimes Prevention Act, MSU’s statement advising the campus community about registered sex offenders is available at
http://www.mipsor.state.mi.us/. A crime log for the past 60 days is available at http://police.msu.edu/clerylop.asp. To obtain
a paper copy of the Security Report or the crime log, contact the Michigan State University Police Department at (517) 355-
2221.

Copyright Infringement and Peer-to-Peer File Sharing Policies and Sanctions

The following links provide information about MSU policies and sanctions related to copyright infringement and unauthorized
peer-to-peer file sharing, including disciplinary action taken against students who engage in illegal downloading or
unauthorized distribution of copyrighted materials using MSU information technology systems. The information also includes a
notice that informs students that unauthorized distribution of copyrighted material may subject the students to civil and
criminal liabilities. A summary of the penalties for violation of federal copyright laws is also provided.

• Copyright Permissions Center
• Digital Millennium Copyright Act Procedures
• Libraries. Computing and Technology Guidelines and Policies
• Notice of Written Plan for Copyright Provisions of the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008

Federal Student Financial Aid Penalties for Drug Law Violations

Federal law provides that a student who has been convicted of an offense under any federal or state law involving the
possession or sale of a controlled substance during a period of enrollment for which the student was receiving financial aid
shall not be eligible to receive any federal or institutional grant, loan, or work assistance. The separate, written notice of the
penalties for drug violations provided to students upon enrollment may be accessed at
http ://finaid . msu.edu/federalnotices.asp.
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Financial Aid

The Office of Financial Aid website (httø://finaid,msu.edu) includes information about the following: need-based and non-
need-based federal, state, local, private, and institutional financial assistance programs available to students; eligibility
requirements and procedures for applying for aid; criteria for selecting recipients and determining amount of award; methods
and frequency of disbursements of aid; financial aid terms and conditions, including terms applicable to employment provided
as part of a financial aid package; rights and responsibilities of students receiving Title IV, HEA loans; the availability of
financial aid for study abroad programs; how financial aid is handled when students withdraw; and whom to contact for
questions regarding financial aid. Federal notices concerning the terms and conditions of federal student loans, entrance and
exit counseling information, drug violation penalties, and the code of conduct for financial aid professionals and advisory
disclosure are available at htto://finaid.msu.edu/federalnotices.aso.

Governing Board

The Board of Trustees of Michigan State University (Board’) is a constitutional body corporate, created by and existing under
Article VIII, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Michigan. The State Constitution provides that the Board has
general supervision” of the University. This information may be found at Michigan Legislature Article VIII. Sec. 5.

Graduation and Retention Rates (Student Right-to-Know Act)

Graduation data of degree-seeking, full-time undergraduate students at MSU is available at
htto://dev.oob.msu.edu/msuinfo/index.aso?info. Information concerning retention rates is available at the IPEDS Data Center
(htto ://nces.ed .oov/ioeds/).

Intercollegiate Athletic Program Participation Rates and Financial Support Data (Equity in Athletics Disclosure Act)

In compliance with the Equity in Athletics Disclosure Act, information on men’s and women’s athletic programs at MSU is
available at htto://dev.oob.msu.edu/msuinfo/odf/eguitvAthletics2009.odf. The report includes the number of participants by
gender for each team, operating and recruiting expenses, coaches’ salaries, revenues, and athletically related student aid. A
copy of the report is available online on the U.S. Department of Education Office of Postsecondary Education Equity in
Athletics Disclosure website at htto://www.ed.aov/finaid/orof/resources/athletics/eada.html. A paper copy of the report may
be obtained by contacting the MSU Office of Planning and Budgets at (517) 355-9271.

Missing Student Notification Procedures

Notification procedures to be followed when a student residing in on-campus housing has been reported missing for more
than 24 hours are available at htto://reo.msu.edu/read/odf/MissingStudentPolicy.odf.

Placement of Graduates

The Destination Survey Report (http ://careernetwork. msu.edu/destination-survey) provides post-graduation outcomes of
MSU baccalaureate degree recipients, including the types of graduate and professional education programs in which
graduates enrolled. The report is prepared using information obtained annually from students who received a baccalaureate
degree, offering a snapshot of their progress during the transition out of college.

Price of Attendance

Information concerning the cost of attending MSU is available at http://www.ctlr.msu.edu/COStudentAccounts/#maincontent.
These costs consist of tuition and fees, books and supplies, room and board, transportation, and any additional costs for a
program in which the student is enrolled or expresses an interest.

Privacy of Student Records (Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act)

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) is a federal law that gives students the right to review their education
records, to request amendment of their records, to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information, and to file
complaints with the U.S. Department of Education. Additional information regarding student rights under FERPA is available at
httr, ://www. rep. msu.edu/read/NotificationandDirectorvlnformationNotice. odf. This information includes MSU procedures for
reviewing and requesting amendment of education records, notice of the types of information MSU has designated as
directory information, and students right to opt-out of directory information. The Michigan State University Access to Student
Information guidelines, a FERPA PowerPoint presentation, and the directory restriction request form may be accessed at
htto://www.rep.msu.edu/ROInfo/Notices/PrivacyGuidelines.aso. If you have any questions about your rights under FERPA,
please contact the Office of the Registrar at (517) 355-3300.

Program Integrity (Complaints)

The University encourages students and prospective students initially to address complaints relating to MSU institutional
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policies and consumer protection issues with personnel in the office, department or college that caused the alleged grievance.
Senior University administrators will be involved, as needed, to resolve the complaints.

Pursuant to the state authorization provision of the Program Integrity Regulations (34 C.F.R. 668.43) established by the
Department of Education on October 29, 2010, the following contact information is provided for filing complaints that remain
unresolved after engaging in the above-referenced process. Complaints concerning broad institutional academic practices,
such as those that raise issues regarding the University’s ability to meet accreditation standards, may be forwarded to the
Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, 30 North LaSalle Street, Chicago,
Illinois 60602-2504 or www.ncahieherlearninpcommission.org. Complaints concerning consumer protection violations may be
directed to the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Michigan, Consumer Protection Division, P.O. Box 30213,
Lansing, MI 48909-7713 or htt://michioan.oov/aci/0.1607.7- 164-1773-42077--.00.html.

Refund Policy, Requirements for Withdrawal, and Return of Title IV, HEA Financial Aid

If a student withdraws or drops a course, MSU will adhere to its refund policy as published in Academic Programs, the
University catalog, available at http://www.reo.msu.edu/AcademicProcirams (enter “refund” in the search box). Information
regarding the requirements and procedures for students seeking to withdraw officially is also available in Academic Programs
at htto://www.reo.msu.edu/AcademicProarams (enter “withdrawal” in the search box). Requirements for return of Title IV,
HEA grant or loan aid are available at
htt ://www.ctlr. msu.edu/COStudentAccounts/ooerationPolicies.asx#FinancialAidRefPolicy.

Services for Students with Disabilities

The Resource Center for Persons with Disabilities (RCPD) provides disability-related information and referrals; documents
disability and conducts needs assessments; facilitates reasonable accommodations; and provides disability-related technical
assistance, auxiliary aids/services, and advocacy and training. Visit the RCPD homepage (htto;//www.rcod.msu.edu) for
additional information on services and resources available to students with disabilities.

Student Body Diversity

Information about student body diversity, including the number of enrolled full-time students by gender and race/ethnicity, is
provided in the Common Data Set (htto://dev.opb.msu.edu/msuinfo/index.aso?info). The number of undergraduate students
who receive a Federal Pell Grant is available at http://nces.ed.oov/collepenaviaator.

Textbook Information/Required Course Materials

Detailed lists of required course materials are made available to students through the Schedule of Courses.

Vaccination Policies

MSU policies regarding vaccinations are available at htto://uphvs.msu.edu/forstudents/immunize/index.html.

Voter Registration

Information on voting in local, state, and federal elections, including a copy of the Michigan voter registration application
form, may be accessed at http://vouvote.msu.edu.

© 2012 Office of the Registrar, Michigan State University Board of Trustees. East Lansing, MI 48824
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer.
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